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Independent auditor's report
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Everbright Water Limited

(the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group") set out on pages 7 to 106, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
Jfor the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

fKey audlt matter

g How our: audlt addressed the key a :*dlt matter ,

HK(IFRIC) Interpretatzon 1 2 Servzce Concesszon Arrangements ( "HK(IFRIC)-Int 1 2’ ) and Revenue

Recognition

The Group enters into service concession arrangements
with municipalities in the People's Republic of China to
build and/or operate waste water treatment plants. The
Group recognises the consideration for the construction
services as contract assets and/or intangible assets for
service concession arrangements within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12. As the related amounts are material
and the application of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires
significant management judgement, we identified this as
a key audit matter.

The Group applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 in its recognition
of revenue from service concession arrangements, which
includes revenue relating to construction services,
operation income and finance income. Disclosure of the
revenue is included in notes 2.5, 3 and 5 to the financial
statements.

Construction service revenue is measured based on the
Group's estimation of the fair value of construction
services and the percentage of construction completed
during the year. Significant judgement is required in
determining the fair value of the construction services
and involves estimation of the total construction costs
and the margin for each contract. The Group engaged an
independent financial modelling consultant to assist in
the estimation of the fair value of the construction
services. The percentage of construction completed
during the year is estimated based on the survey of work
performed by independent surveyors with relevant
qualifications and industry experience. Judgement is
required in estimating the percentage of construction
completed.

We assessed the appropriateness of the Group's
revenue recognition policies, evaluated the Group's
process in assessing the applicability of HK(IFRIC)-
Int 12 and also reviewed the associated agreements to
assess whether these agreements are appropriately
identified as service concession arrangements to be
within the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12.

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the independent consultant and
surveyors engaged by management. We reviewed the
progress reports for projects under construction and
the reasonableness of the revenue recognised over
time.

We reviewed management's computation of
amortised cost of contract assets and intangible assets
and allocation of consideration between contract
assets and intangible assets and the related revenue
recognised during the year and tested key estimates
including discount rates used by management by
comparing to the relevant market interest rates to
assess appropriateness.

We engaged our internal specialists to review the
valuation methodology and the reasonableness of
certain key assumptions such as the margin used and
the industry comparable companies in the
determination of the fair value of the construction
services in the financial model.

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures
related to service concession arrangements in the
financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent aunditor's report (continued)

To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

_ How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recovefabilily of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade
receivables amounting to HK$3,361,597,000, net of
expected credit loss ("ECL") allowance of
HK$446,835,000. The Group determines impairment
losses by making debtor-specific assessment of ECL for
credit impaired debtors and has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment for the
remaining group of debtors taking into consideration
impact arising from the COVID-19 pandemic.

The estimation of impairment loss of trade receivables is
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of trade receivables as well as expectation of
forward-looking factors. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, taking into consideration
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Accordingly, we identified this
as a key audit matter. Disclosures of the trade
receivables are included in notes 2.5, 3 and 20 to the
financial statements.

We obtained an understanding of management's
processes relating to the monitoring of trade
receivables.

In assessing the adequacy of the ECL allowance, we
reviewed the ageing analysis of the debtors to identify
potential collectability issues, reviewed data used in
management's assessment of default rates and
assessed the reasonableness of management's
assumptions used in establishing the forward-looking
adjustments including the potential impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. In addition, we discussed with
management about the status of significant overdue
individual ~ debtors'  balance, = management's
consideration of the debtors' specific profiles and
risks, reviewed settlement history and assessed
management's assumptions used to determine the
ECL allowance. We also requested direct
confirmations and considered receipts subsequent to
the year end.

We further considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures regarding the estimation uncertainty
involved in determining the ECL allowance.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter - -

<"1 How our audit addressed the key audit matter - -

Impairment assessment of goodwill

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets requires goodwill to be
tested annually for impairment or more frequently when
there is an indication that the cash-generating unit
("CGU") may be impaired. This assessment requires the
exercise of significant judgement about the future market
conditions, including future cash flows to be generated
from the continuing use of the waste water treatment
plants over the service concession period.  The
determination of the recoverable amount requires
judgement in both identification and valuation of the
relevant CGU given the changes in the market and
economic conditions brought on by the COVID-19

pandemic. Accordingly, we identified this as a key audit
matter.

The Group determined that the water environment
management segment was accounted for as a collective
CGU for the purpose of impairment testing. The
impairment assessment was determined using a value-in-
use model based on the discounted cash flows projection.
Assumptions such as estimated key financial data, the
growth rate and discount rate used to determine the
discounted cash flows required significant judgements
by the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the goodwill carried in the
Group's  financial  statements  amounted to
HK$1,400,952,000.  Disclosures of goodwill are
included in notes 2.5, 3 and 16 to the financial
statements.

We reviewed the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of the CGU.

We assessed the appropriateness of the discount rate
used by assessing the cost of capital of the Company
and comparable organisations in the industry, and
where relevant, using our internal valuation
specialists to independently develop expectations for
the discount rate, and comparing the independent
expectations to those used by management.

We reviewed the cash flows forecasts by comparing
them to recent and past performance, taking into
consideration the approach used in the valuation. We
tested the reasonableness of key assumptions used in
the cash flows forecast, which include growth rate,
discount rate and long-term growth rate, and taking
into account management's consideration of the
potential impact that COVID-19 pandemic has on the
Group's operations.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
made in the financial statements on the impairment
assessment, specifically on the key assumptions that
have the most significant effect on the determination
of the recoverable amount of the goodwill.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal
contro] as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Chung Yuk Man.

+

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
26 April 2023

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2022

Notes 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
REVENUE 5 6,727,967 6,912,371
Direct costs and operating expenses (4,163,980) (4,110,782)
Gross profit 2,563,987 2,801,589
Other income and gains/(losses), net 6 53,793 ( 22,492)
Administrative and other operating expenses ( 730,683) ( 671,142)
Finance income 7 28,302 21,999
Finance costs 7 ( 544,615) ( 435,302)
Share of profits and losses of associates 11,226 (  6,758)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 1,382,010 1,687,894
Income tax 9 ( 315,101) ( 404,908)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,066,909 1,282,986
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising on translation of
functional currency to presentation currency (1,672,596) 507,007
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX (1,672,596) 507,007
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR
THE YEAR ( 605,687) 1,789,993
continued/...



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

Notes 2022
HKS$'000
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Company 1,010,565
Holders of perpetual capital instruments 14,334
Non-controlling interests 42,010
1,066,909
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Company ( 550,953)
Holders of perpetual capital instruments 14,334
Non-controlling interests ( 69,068)
( 605,687)
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 11
- Basic and diluted HK35.32 cents

2021
HK$'000

1,200,329

82,657

1,282,986

1,673,707

116,286

1,789,993

HK41.96 cents




CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2022

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets
Investment properties

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Interests in an associate
Contract assets

Other receivables
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Contract assets

Other financial assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Tax payable

Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Notes

12
14(a)
13

15
16
17
18
20
21
26

18
21
19
20
22

23
24

14(b)

2022
HK$'000

994,950
89,835
11,398

1,096,183

2,369,863
1,400,952
11,094
19,077,113
556,154

3,253

24,514,612

2,010,393
221,717
85,820
3,767,702

2,845,907

8,931,539

3,168,112
5,686,435
61,329

2,656
8,918,532
13,007

24,527,619

2021
HK$'000

1,043,532
104,372
12,468

1,160,372

2,280,920
1,531,576
231
19,750,324
771,809
36,122
6,127

25,537,481

1,990,466
222,880
70,189
2,866,254
2,281,986

7,431,775

3,215,673
3,392,028
78,274
5,234

6,691,209
740,566

26,278,047

continued/...



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

31 December 2022

Notes 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 24 9,575,700 11,049,910
Deferred tax liabilities 26 1,950,690 2,063,737
Lease liabilities 14(b) 351 1,168
Total non-current liabilities 11,526,741 13,114,815
NET ASSETS 13,000,878 13,163,232
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capital 27 2,860,877 2,860,877
Reserves 28 8,106,613 9,009,206
10,967,490 11,870,083
Perpetual capital instruments 29 806,982 -
Non-controlling interests 1,226,406 1,293,149
TOTAL EQUITY 13,000,878 13,163,232
(- E * . T'T'
Director
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of contract assets
Finance costs
Interest income
Share of profits and losses of associates
Gain from disposal of an associate
Fair value changes of other financial assets, net
Provision for impairment of trade receivables, net
Provision for impairment of other receivables
Provision for impairment of contract assets
Impairment of intangible assets
Effect on foreign exchange rates changes, net

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in contract assets

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations
People's Republic of China ("PRC") income tax paid

Net cash flows used in operating activities

14

Notes

NI NON GO 00

Q000N

2022
HK$'000

1,382,010

63,424
13,243
177,231
94

544,615
( 28302)
( 11,226)

15,785
226,899
33,829
4,002
14,230

( 155,383)

2,280,451

( 22,344)
(1,275,259)
(1,310,398)

( 61,043)

( 388,593)

( 251,036)

( 639,629)

2021
HK$'000

1,687,894

50,297

12,616
59,126
7,129
3,217
33,045
435,302

( 21,999)

6,758

( 2)

57,615
101,981
16,451
3,533

26,837

2,479,800
34,252
(2,324,253)
( 784,941)
125,605

( 469,537)
( 199,604)

( 669,141)

continued/...



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from disposal of an associate

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment
Payment for additions of intangible assets
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from an associate
Decrease in other financial assets

Interest received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issuance of medium-term notes
("MTN™), net of related expenses paid
Proceeds from the issuance of super and short-term
commercial papers ("SCP"), net of related expenses paid
Proceeds from the issuance of perpetual capital
instruments, net of related expenses paid 29
New bank loans
Repayment of corporate bonds
Repayment of asset-backed securities ("ABS")
Repayment of SCP
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid 31(a)
Principal elements of lease payments
Interest elements of lease payments
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank balances and
pledged bank deposits
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries
Capital contributions from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary

Net cash flows from financing activities

15

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
( 9,606) ( 794,616)
- 1,222

( 116,979) ( 29,744)
478 709

( 255,754) ( 482,210)
( 385) 8,201
- 137,577

28,302 21,999

( 353,944) (1,136,862)
1,233,688 1,199,392
2,384,000 962,320
806,982 -
4,483,246 5,660,898
( 820,750) ( 14,615)
( 66,190) ( 64,354)
(1,156,300) ( 962,320)
(4,215,294) (3,706,012)
( 503,664) ( 380,488)
( 10,329) ( 10,128)
( 602) ( 456)
( 17) 15,750
( 356,358) ( 338,546)
( 17,573) ( 43,956)
24,544 4223
1,785,383 2,321,708
continued/...



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

Notes

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and

cash equivalents, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END
OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position 22
Less: Restricted bank balances and pledged bank deposits 22

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows

16

2022
HKS$'000

791,810
2,281,001

( 227,821)

2,844,990

2,845,907

( 917)

2,844,990

(

2021
HK$'000

515,705
1,702,855

62,441

2,281,001

2,281,986

985)

2,281,001



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

2.1

22

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Everbright Water Limited (the "Company") is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and is dual primary listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and the Mainboard of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The registered address
of the Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is located at 26th Floor, Block A, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza, No. 1003 Shennan
Avenue, Futian District, Shenzhen, PRC 518000.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company's subsidiaries are
primarily involved in the water environment management business in the PRC.

The immediate holding company of the Company is China Everbright Water Holdings Limited
("CEWHL"), a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"). In the
opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding entity of the Company is China Investment
Corporation, an entity established in the PRC.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements are not statutory financial statements and are prepared solely, at the
request of management, for the purpose of issuance of corporate bonds or notes to institutional
investors in the national inter-bank bond market of the PRC.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL") which have
been measured at fair value.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi ("RMB"). These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the Company's presentation currency, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2022. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

17



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

2.2

23

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. When the
Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including;

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(© the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
HKFRSs 2018-2020 accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

18



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

23

2.4

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The revised HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group did not have any significant impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are
not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts"®
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the "2020 Amendments")>*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the "2022
Amendments")?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020 Amendments was
deferred to annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of
the 2020 Amendments and 2020 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change
in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was
amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification overlay set out
in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17

E N

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs upon initial application, but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have any significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of associates is
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included
as part of the Group's investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with the local government
authorities in the PRC (the "Grantors").

Under these service concession arrangements:

. the Grantors control or regulate the services the Group must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price; and
. the Grantors control, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any significant

residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement, or the
infrastructure is used for its entire useful life under the arrangements, or both the Group's
practical ability to sell or pledge the infrastructure is restricted and continuing right of use of
the infrastructure is given to the Grantors throughout the period of the arrangements.

The Group's infrastructure includes leasehold land, buildings, plant and machinery that are acquired

from the Grantors and/or are derecognised by the Group when the directors of the Company
consider that the significant risks and rewards of these assets have been passed to the Grantors.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Service concession arrangements (continued)

Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the
Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of
the grantor for the construction services rendered and/or the consideration paid and payable by the
Group for the right to manage and operate the infrastructure for public service. The Group has an
unconditional right to receive cash if the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a)
specified or determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users of
the public service and specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment is contingent on the
Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets specified requirements. The financial asset (receivable
under service concession arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for
"Financial assets and liabilities" below.

An intangible asset (concession right) is recognised to the extent that the Group receives a right to
charge users of the public service. The intangible asset (concession right) is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the operation phase of the concession periods.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible
asset, then each component of the consideration is accounted for separately and is recognised initially
at the fair value of the consideration.

Construction of service concession related infrastructure

Revenue relating to construction services is accounted for in accordance with the policy for "Revenue
recognition” below.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in accordance with the policy for "Revenue
recognition" below.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and certain equity investments and wealth
management products at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, construction contract assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the

period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset,

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of
an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(2)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that person

®
(i)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

)
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.5% to 4%
Plant and machinery 2.5% to 20%
Leasehold improvements, furniture

and fixtures 20% to 25%
Motor vehicles and office

equipment 12.5% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

24



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net

assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

The following intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Concession rights 20 to 32 years
Patents and trademarks 10 to 20 years
Computer software 5 years
Customer relationships 5 years

The useful life of the patents and trademarks of the Group is determined based on the shorter of their
statutory validity periods and the expected benefit periods.

The useful life of the customer relationships of the Group is determined based on the expected
benefit periods with reference to the historical customer attrition rate.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the intangible asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant intangible asset.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new water environment technologies is capitalised and
deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete
the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Water
environment technologies development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets, as follows:

Land and buildings 2 to 40 years
Equipment and others 2 to 3 years

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of
low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of comprehensive
income due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

®

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ("OCI"), and FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are "solely payments of principal and
interest” on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.
. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest

method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

M

Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at FVPI,

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured at FVPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on equity investments are recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at FVPL. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the FVPL category.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

@

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans
and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings and lease
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
HKFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs") for all loans
and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL using a forward-looking ECL approach.

The ECL allowance is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the asset's original effective interest rate ("EIR").

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group has applied the standard's simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

Other receivables are assessed for impairment based on 12-month ECLs: 12-month ECLs are the
portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the asset is less than 12 months). However,

when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECL.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payment are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise raw materials and consumables used in the repairs and maintenance of
the waste water treatment plants, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. When inventories are consumed,
the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, short-term deposits and short-term balances in
financial institutions with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the
management of its short-term commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, restricted bank balances are excluded
whilst bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are included in cash and cash equivalents.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time
is included in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs,
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by way
of a reduced depreciation charge.

34



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a product or service to a customer.

The Group has satisfied a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

(2) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs

(b) The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced

(©) The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternate use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group recognises revenue at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based on the
Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to the
surveyors' assessment of work performed and the costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as
a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

When the Group provides more than one service in a service concession arrangement, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation by reference to their relative
stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly observable, they are
estimated based on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach, depending
on the availability of observable information.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the
effect of a financing component if it is significant.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Construction service revenue

The Group's performance in respect of construction services creates or enhances an asset or work in
progress that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced, thus the Group satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue from construction service over time, by reference to
completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the surveyors' assessment of work
performed and the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract.

Revenue from the construction services under a service concession agreement is estimated on a cost-
plus basis with reference to a prevailing market rate of gross margin at the date of the agreement
applicable to similar construction services rendered.

Operation revenue

The Group recognises revenue from environmental water project operation services when the related
services are rendered. The operation revenue from reusable water supply service is recognised at a
point in time when the Group has delivered water to the customer; the customer has accepted the
water; the Group has the present right to payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.
The other operation revenue from service concession arrangements is recognised over the period of
time that the services are rendered and the benefits are received and consumed simultaneously by the
customers.

Finance and interest income

Finance and interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the EIR method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains rights to receive consideration from
the customer and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services to the
customer. The combination of those rights and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or a
net liability depending on the relationship between the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if the measure of the remaining
rights exceeds the measure of the remaining performance obligation. Conversely, the contract is a
liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of the remaining performance obligations
exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer within contract
assets if the Group expects to recover those costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits - pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the "MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees'
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the note to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company's memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is RMB. These financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is the Company's presentation currency. The Company has used HKS as its presentation
currency to be consistent with that of CEWHL. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax

charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company, certain overseas subsidiaries and associates are
currencies other than the HK$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into HKS$ at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of comprehensive income are translated into HKS$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of the Company, certain
overseas subsidiaries and associates are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of these entities which arise throughout the year
are translated into HKS at the weighted average exchange rates for the year,
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Service concession arrangements
The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT"), Transfer-Operate-Transfer ("TOT") and
Build-Operate-Own ("BOQ") arrangements in respect of its environmental water projects.

The Group has concluded that all the BOT and TOT arrangements and certain BOO arrangements
are service concession arrangements under HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 12 Service Concession
Arrangements ("HK(IFRIC)-Int 12"), because the local government controls and regulates the
services that the Group must provide with the infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In
respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry of concession right agreements, the
infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government at nil consideration. Infrastructure for
BOO arrangements is used in the service concession arrangements for its entire or substantially
entire useful life.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Contract assets and/or intangible assets under HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

The Group recognises the consideration received or receivable in exchange for the construction
services as a contract asset and/or an intangible asset under a service concession arrangement.
However, if the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a contract asset and partly by
an intangible asset, it is necessary to account separately for each component of the operator's
consideration. The consideration received or receivable for both components shall be recognised
initially at the fair value.

The segregation of the consideration for a service concession arrangement between the contract
asset component and the intangible asset component, if any, requires the Group to make an estimate
of a number of factors, which include, inter alia, fair value of the construction services, expected
future water treatment volume of the relevant water treatment plant over its service concession
period, future guaranteed receipts and unguaranteed receipts, and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. These estimates, including revenue
recognition under the contract asset and intangible asset components are determined by the Group's
management based on their experience and assessment on current and future market conditions. The
carrying amounts of the intangible assets ("concession rights") and contract assets at the end of
reporting period are disclosed in notes 15 and 18 to the financial statements, respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at
each reporting date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill) are disclosed in notes 12 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets

The impairment loss in respect of contract assets and trade and other receivables of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of contract assets and trade and other
receivables and on management's judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. If the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their abilities to make payments, additional allowances
may be required.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets are
disclosed in notes 18, 20 and 22 to the financial statements.

Revenue recognition for construction work

The Group recognises contract revenue over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation at the reporting date. The progress is measured based on
the Group's effort or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to the
surveyors' assessment of work performed and the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period
as a percentage of total estimated costs for each performance obligation in the contract. Significant
assumptions are required to estimate the recoverable variation works that will affect the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates in each construction contract as the contract progresses.

Impairment losses for goodwill

As explained in the accounting policy set out in note 2.5 to the financial statements for "Business
combinations and goodwill", goodwill is allocated to a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination for the purpose of
impairment assessment, which requires significant judgement. The Group determined that the group
of cash-generating units to which goodwill was allocated reflected the lowest level at which
goodwill was monitored for internal reporting and was not larger than an operating segment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment losses for goodwill (continued)

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This involves an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at the reporting date is
disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income and other taxes and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified based on the internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the Company's management and the board of directors for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets and
expense, interest-bearing borrowings and related expenses and income and deferred taxes. The
Group operates in a single business segment which is the water environment management business
in the PRC. No operating segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
operating segment.

Business segment

The Group had only one operating segment for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
namely the water environment management business, the details of which are set out below:

. Water environment management - Engagement in municipal waste water treatment,
industrial waste water treatment, water supply, reusable water, sludge treatment and
disposal, sponge city construction, river-basin ecological restoration, waste water source
heat pump, leachate treatment, research and development ("R&D") of water environment
technologies and engineering construction.
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4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

(@ Revenue from external customers

Mainland China
Germany

2022
HK$'000

6,713,391

14,576

6,727,967

2021
HK$'000

6,907,083
5,288

6,912,371

The revenue information above is based on the locations at which the services were

provided.

b Non-current assets

Mainland China
Hong Kong
Singapore
Germany

2022
HK$'000

24,513,051

956
447
158

24,514,612

2021
HK$'000

25,497,214
1,646
2,237

262

25,501,359

The non-current assets information above is based on the locations of the assets and

excludes other financial assets.

Major customers

Customer 1**
Customer 2**
Customer 3**

*

2022
HK$'000

723,986
679,072

N/A*

did not account for 10% or more of the Group's revenue for that year.

*E The customers are local government authorities.
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2021
HK$'000

709,115
N/A*

811,907

The corresponding revenue from this customer is not disclosed as the revenue individually
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5. REVENUE

Construction service revenue from service

concession arrangements
Finance income from service concession arrangements
Operation income from service concession arrangements
Construction contract revenue and technical service income

Timing of revenue recognition:
At a point in time
Over time

Finance income from service concession arrangements

2022
HK$'000

2,403,740
1,107,945
2,950,629

265,653

6,727,967
170,522
5,449,500

5,620,022
1,107,945

6,727,967

2021
HK$'000

3,098,448
1,068,040
2,522,688

223,195

6,912,371
127,607
5,716,724

5,844,331
1,068,040

6,912,371

The aggregated amount of construction service revenue, finance income and operation income
derived from the local government authorities in the PRC amounted to HK$6,357,746,000 (2021:
HK$6,608,774,000) for the year ended 31 December 2022. Details of concentrations of credit risk
arising from these customers are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Included in the revenue recognised in the year ended 31 December 2022, nil (2021: HK$8,205,000)
was related to performance obligations satisfied in previous periods.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or

partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

Unsatisfied performance obligations related to service
concession arrangements:
Expected to be recognised within one year
Expected to be recognised after one year

Total transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations
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2022
HK$'000

6,370,953

104,437,621

110,808,574

2021
HK$'000

6,030,603

104,599,383

110,629,986
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5. REVENUE (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient under HKFRS 15 and does not include information
about revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfied the remaining performance
obligations for contracts with an original expected duration of one year or less.

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Government grants* 37,365 50,011

Value-added tax ("VAT") refunds** 19,855 9,324

Fair value gains/(losses), net:

Other financial assets - unlisted investments (18,382) (58,583)

Other financial assets - unlisted equity investments 2,597 968

Gain from disposal of an associate - 2
Loss on disposal of intangible assets - ( 3,217)
Loss on disposal of contract assets - (33,045)

Sundry income 12,358 12,048
53,793 (22,492)

Government grants were granted during the year ended 31 December 2022 to subsidise
certain waste water treatment plants of the Group in the PRC. The receipt of such grants is
not subject to any unfulfilled conditions or any other contingencies. There is no assurance
that the Group will continue to receive such grants in the future.

*x VAT refunds were received/receivable during the year ended 31 December 2022 in relation
to the Group's certain environmental water projects in operation in the PRC. The receipt of
such tax refunds is not subject to any unfulfilled conditions or any other contingencies.
There is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such tax refunds in the future,
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7. NET FINANCE COSTS

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Finance income
Interest income on:
Bank deposits 27,929 21,289
Amounts due from an associate 373 710
28,302 21,999
Finance costs
Interest expense on:
Bank loans (330,138) (226,603)
Corporate bonds, ABS, MTN and SCP (213,875) (208,243)
Lease liabilities ( 602 ( 456)
(544,615) (435,302)
Net finance costs (516,313) (413,303)
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Depreciation*
- property, plant and equipment 12 63,424 50,297
- right-of-use assets 14(a) 13,243 12,616
Amortisation of intangible assets* 15 177,231 59,126
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 94 7,129
Loss on disposal of intangible assets - 3,217
Loss on disposal of contract assets - 33,045
Cost of construction services from service concession
arrangements** 1,730,322 2,331,530
R&D costs 50,976 50,097
Rental expenses from short-term leases 4,188 2,835
Provision for impairment of trade receivables, net 20 226,899 101,981
Provision for impairment of other receivables 20 33,829 16,451
Provision for impairment of contract assets 18 4,002 3,533
Impairment of intangible assets 15 14,230 -
Foreign exchange differences, net ( 39,620) 3,691
Employee benefit expense*
Wages, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 415,334 394917
Retirement scheme contributions 58,764 124,512
474,098 519,429
Auditor's remuneration
- Audit services 3,550 3,380
- Other services 1,119 1,620

Amortisation of intangible assets, depreciation and employee benefit expense in total of
HK$440,349,000 (2021: HK$309,036,000) for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
included in "Direct costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

ok Included in "Direct costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the retirement schemes in future years (2021: Nil).
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INCOME TAX

No provision for Singapore or Hong Kong income tax was made as the Group did not earn any
income subject to Singapore or Hong Kong income tax during the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil).

Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the statutory rate of 25% based on the assessable profits in
accordance with the tax rules and regulations in the PRC. During the year ended 31 December
2022, certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% pursuant
to the relevant tax rules and regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2022, certain PRC
subsidiaries of the Group were subject to tax at half of the foregoing statutory rate or fully exempted
from income tax pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations.

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current - PRC:
Charge for the year 238,790 220,030
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years 1,524 ( 16,766)
Deferred (note 26) 74,787 201,644
Total tax expense for the year 315,101 404,908

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rate for the country
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

effective tax rates is as follows:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit before tax 1,382,010 1,687,894

Tax calculated at tax rate of 25% 345,502 421,974
Tax concession ( 254,369) ( 215,059
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous periods 1,524 ( 16,766)

Profits and losses attributable to associates ( 2,807 1,689
Income not subject to tax ( 12,731 (9590

Expenses not deductible for tax 157,424 128,743

Tax losses not recognised 27,969 11,188
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ( 1,185) ( 6,436)

Effect of withholding tax on the distributable profits
of the Group's PRC subsidiaries 53,774 89,166
Tax expense at the Group's effective rate 315,101 404,908
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10.

11.

DIVIDENDS

2022
HK$'000

Dividends for the financial year:
Interim - HK5.45 cents (equivalent to
0.98 Singapore cent ("Sing cent")) (2021:
HKS5.75 cents (equivalent to 1.01 Sing cents))
per ordinary share 156,172

Proposed final - HK5.14 cents (equivalent to
0.86 Sing cent) (2021: HK6.83 cents (equivalent
to 1.19 Sing cents)) per ordinary share 147,049

303,221

Final dividend for the previous financial year
which was paid during the financial year -
HK6.83 cents (equivalent to 1.19 Sing cents)
(2021: HK6.07 cents (equivalent to 1.04 Sing cents))

per ordinary share 195,468

2021
HK$'000

164,651

195,468

360,119

173,266

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based on the Group's profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$1,010,565,000 (2021: HK$1,200,329,000)
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company of approximately

2,860,877,000 (2021: approximately 2,860,877,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 December

2022 and 2021.
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12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2022

Cost:
At 1 January 2022
Additions
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2022
Charge for the year
Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2022

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2022

Leasehold
improve- Motor
ments, vehicles
Plant and furniture and office Construction
Buildings machinery and fixtures  equipment  in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'0600 HK$'000
719,758 367,138 16,527 97,190 12,927 1,213,540
1,596 1,733 2,525 25,480 85,645 116,979
- ( 575 ( 62 ( 4,039) - ( 4,676)
( 61,753) ( 31,562) ( 1,331) ( 9,234) (14,627) ( 118,507)
659,601 336,734 17,659 109,397 83,945 1,207,336
58,874 41,031 10,910 59,193 - 170,008
22,599 21,027 1,349 18,449 - 63,424
- ( 313) ( 62) ( 3,729 - (4,109
( 5,984) ( 4,478) ( 796) ( 5,684) - 16,942)
75,489 57,267 11,401 68,229 - 212,386
584,112 279,467 6,258 41,168 83,945 994,950
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Leasehold
improve- Motor
ments, vehicles
Plant and furniture and office Construction
Buildings machinery and fixtures  equipment  in progress Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

31 December 2021

Cost:
At 1 January 2021 110,600 55,236 13,106 93,074 - 272,016
Additions - 11,037 3,281 11,174 4,252 29,744
Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 30) 594,801 294,925 - 420 8,455 898,601
Disposals - ( 1,261) ( 253) ( 10,234) - ( 11,748)
Exchange realignment 14,357 7,201 393 2,756 220 24,927
At 31 December 2021 719,758 367,138 16,527 97,190 12,927 1,213,540
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2021 38,143 20,494 9,428 51,096 - 119,161
Charge for the year 19,227 19,568 1,462 10,040 - 50,297
Disposals - ( 1) ( 229 ( 3,680) - 3910)
Exchange realignment 1,504 970 249 1,737 - 4,460
At 31 December 2021 58,874 41,031 10,910 59,193 - 170,008
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2021 660,884 326,107 5,617 37,997 12,927 1,043,532

The property ownership certificates of certain buildings of the Group in the PRC (the "Buildings")
with an aggregate net carrying amount of HK$16,572,000 (2021: HK$19,536,000) as at 31 December
2022 have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, pursuant to the relevant agreements signed with the local government authorities in the
PRC and based on the advice from the Company's PRC legal adviser, Zhong Lun Law Firm, the
Group has the proper legal rights to occupy and use the Buildings.
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Carrying amount at 1 January
Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December

The directors of the Company have determined that the Group's investment properties are

2022
HK$'000

12,468
( 1,070)

11,398

2021

HK$'000

12,082
386

12,468

commercial investment properties based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.
The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2022 based on valuation
performed by management, at HK$11,398,000 (2021: HK$12,468,000).

The investment properties are leased or will be leased to third parties under operating leases, further
summary details of which are included in note 14 to the financial statements.

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment

properties:

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2022 using

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value
measurement for:
Commercial investment properties - - 11,398 11,398
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2021 using
Quoted
prices in Significant  Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value
measurement for:
Commercial investment properties - - 12,468 12,468
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13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs to the valuation of
investment properties together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis:

Commercial
investment

property

Commercial
investment

property

Valuation
technigue

Significant

unobservable input

Range

Sensitivity of fair
value to the input

Discounted cash
flow method

Market
comparison
approach

Estimated rental
value

Rent growth

Discount rate

Estimated sales
price

52

RMB185 per
square meter

annually (2021:

RMB196 per
square meter
annually)

5%
(2021: 5%)

3%
(2021: 3%)

RMBS5,257 per
square meter
(2021:
RMB4,984 per
square meter)

5% (2021: 5%) increase
(decrease) in

estimated rental value
would result in

increase (decrease)

in fair value by
HK$69,000

(2021: HK$76,000)

1% (2021: 1%) increase
(decrease) in rent
growth would result

in increase in fair value
by HK$113,000

(2021: HK$141,000) or
decrease in fair value
by HK$103,000

(2021: HK$127,000)

1% (2021: 1%) increase
(decrease) in

discount rate would
result in decrease in

fair value by
HK$219,000

(2021: HK$260,000 ) or
increase in fair value

by HK$259,000

(2021: HK$311,000 )

5% (2021: 5%) increase
(decrease) in estimated
sales price would result
in increase (decrease)
in fair value by
HK$412,000

(2021: HK$450,000 )
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the
benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset's life including an exit or terminal value. This
method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property interest. A market-derived
discount rate is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the
income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately determined and
differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are determined by
events such as rent reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of
property. The periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable
expenses, collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and
other operating and management expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

Under market comparison approach, fair value of investment properties is determined by reference
to recent sales prices of comparable properties on a price per square metre basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's buildings compared to the recent sales
and the timing on the comparable transactions. Higher premium for higher quality buildings and a
favourable adjustment on the timing of comparable transaction will result in higher fair value
measurement.
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14. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land and buildings, equipment and others used in
its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the land lease from the owners
with lease terms of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of buildings, equipment and others generally have lease terms between 2 and 3 years.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use assets and movements during the year are

as follows:
Prepaid

land lease Equipment

payments Buildings and others Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2021 4,887 11,346 52 16,285
Additions - 4,640 - 4,640
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) 94,143 - - 94,143
Disposals - ( 4,134) - ( 4,134
Depreciation charge (2,688 (9,876) (52) (12,616)
Write-back on disposals - 4,134 - 4,134
Exchange realignment 1,799 121 - 1,920
As at 31 December 2021 and

1 January 2022 98,141 6,231 - 104,372

Additions - 7,166 - 7,166
Disposals - (25,627) (555) ( 26,182)
Depreciation charge ( 3,043)  (10,200) - (13,243)
Write-back on disposals - 25,627 555 26,182
Exchange realignment (8283 ( 17D - ( 8,460)
As at 31 December 2022 86,815 3,020 - 89,835
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14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
®) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of the Group's lease liabilities and movements during the year are as

follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amount at 1 January 6,402 11,756
New leases 7,166 4,640
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 602 456
Payments (10,931) (10,584)
Exchange realignment ( 232) 134
Carrying amount at 31 December 3,007 6,402
Analysed into:
Current portion 2,656 5,234
Non-current portion 351 1,168
Carrying amount at 31 December 3,007 6,402
(©) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as below:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 7) 602 456
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 13,243 12,616
Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in "Administrative and other
operating expenses") 4,188 2,835
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 18,033 15,907
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31(c) to the financial statements.
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases one of its investment properties (note 13), consisting of one commercial
investment property in the PRC. The shop had been rented out for a period of 6 years from 1
November 2019 under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the lease generally require the
tenant to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$86,000 (2021:

HK$168,000).

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivables by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating lease with its tenant are as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2022

Cost:
At 1 January 2022
Additions
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment:
At 1 January 2022

Amortisation provided during the year

Impairment provided during the year
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2022

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
507 555
1,836 734
2,343 1,289

Concession Patents and Computer Customer
rights trademarks  software relationships Total
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
2,695,010 26,618 9,548 13,612 2,744,788
488,271 - 1,670 - 489,941
( 253,839) (2,283) ( 897) ( 1,168) ( 258,187)
2,929,442 24,335 10,321 12,444 2,976,542
423,577 26,618 4,144 9,529 463,868
173,364 - 1,258 2,609 177,231
14,230 - - - 14,230
( 45,014 (2,283) ( 415 ( 938) ( 48,650)
566,157 24,335 4,987 11,200 606,679
2,363,285 - 5,334 1,244 2,369,863

56



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Concession Patents and Computer Customer
rights trademarks  software relationships Total
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
31 December 2021
Cost:
At 1 January 2021 2,259,081 25,795 10,235 13,191 2,308,302
Additions - 544 - 482,210
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) - - 28 - 28
Disposal ( 123,604) - - - ( 123,604)
Write-off - - ( 1,570) - ( L570)
Exchange realignment 823 311 421 79,422
At 31 December 2021 2,695,010 26,618 9,548 13,612 2,744,788
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2021 25,795 3,990 6,428 427,383
Amortisation provided during the year - 1,596 2,852 59,126
Disposal ( - - - ( 37,026)
Write-off - ( 1,570) - ( 1,570)
Exchange realignment 823 128 249 15,955
At 31 December 2021 26,618 4,144 9,529 463,868
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2021 2,271,433 - 5,404 4,083 2,280,920

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's concession rights of the environmental water
projects (comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract assets and trade receivables)
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$5,678,280,000 (2021: HK$5,786,528,000) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details of which
are included in notes 24, 25 and 32 to the financial statements.

Included in "Concession rights" of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are contract assets of nil
(2021: HK$1,317,479,000) arising from performance under construction contracts in connection

with service concession arrangements.

16. GOODWILL

Cost and net carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30)
Exchange realignment

Cost and net carrying amount at the end of the year

2022
HK$'000

1,531,576
( 130,624)

1,400,952

2021
HK$'000

1,295,475
191,633

44,468

1,531,576
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16.

17.

GOODWILL (continued)
The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable mainly to the expected synergies from
combining operations of the acquiree and acquirer. None of the goodwill acquired is expected to be

deductible for tax purposes.

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the water environment
management segment.

The recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units within the water environment
management segment was determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period using a growth rate of 3% to 10%
(2021: 3% to 10%) approved by management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 11.3% (2021: 11.1%), and cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated
using a growth rate of 2.5% (2021: 3%). Management determined the budgets based on service
concession arrangements governing the relevant operations. Based on the assessment, no
impairment provision was necessary as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of net assets 11,094 231
Particulars of the Group's associate are as follows:
Percentage of
ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name capital and business to the Group activities
Qingdao Haibohe Water Paid up PRC/ 49 Waste water
Operating Limited capital of United Mainland treatment
States dollars China

("US$") 350,845

As at 31 December 2022, the above investment was held by the Company's subsidiary.
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18.

CONTRACT ASSETS
31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current
Service concession assets (a) 19,094,999 19,766,155 17,360,815
Less: Impairment © ( 17,886) ( 15,831) ( 12,195)
19,077,113 19,750,324 17,348,620
Current
Service concession assets (a) 1,953,883 1,949,143 1,679,084
Less: Impairment (©) ( 1,830) ( 1,561) ( 1,179)
1,952,053 1,947,582 1,677,905
Other contract assets (b) 58,340 42,884 3,282
2,010,393 1,990,466 1,681,187
Total 21,087,506 21,740,790 19,029,807
Notes:
(a) Included in "Service concession assets" as at 31 December 2022 are amounts of

(b)

HK$525,427,000 (2021: HK$534,155,000) and HK$704,322,000 (2021: HK$822,617,000)
which are due from a non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary and a
related company of a non wholly-owned subsidiary, respectively.

Service concession assets as at 31 December 2022 totalling HK$21,048,882,000 (2021:
HK$21,715,298,000) bear interest at rates ranging from 4.40% to 7.83% (2021: 4.90% to
7.83%) per annum. As at 31 December 2022, HK$10,549,068,000 (2021:
HK$11,218,763,000) related to the service concession arrangements with operation
commenced. The amounts for the service concession arrangements are not yet due for
payment and will be settled by revenue to be generated during the operating periods of the

service concession arrangements. Amounts billed will be transferred to trade receivables (note
20).

The balance comprised contract assets arising from performance under construction
management service contracts. Such contracts include payment schedules which require stage
payments over the service periods once milestones are reached.
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18. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(¢) Impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2022, HK$19,716,000 (2021: HK$17,392,000) was recognised as an
allowance for expected credit losses on contract assets. The Group's trading terms and credit

policy with customers are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

The movements in the provision for impairment of contract assets are as follows:

At the beginning of the year

Impairment losses recognised (note 8)

Exchange realignment

At the end of the year

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
17,392 13,374
4,002 3,533

( 1,678) 485
19,716 17,392

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using the probability of default
approach to measure expected credit losses. The probabilities of default rates are estimated
based on comparable entities with published credit ratings. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forward-looking credit risk information. As at 31 December 2022, the probability of default
applied ranging from 0.05% to 0.12% (2021: 0.05% to 0.16%) and the loss given default was

estimated ranging from 57.70% to 64.90% (2021: 57.65% to 64.87%)

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's concession rights of the environmental water
projects (comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract assets and trade receivables)
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$5,678,280,000 (2021: HK$5,786,528,000) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details of which

are included in notes 24, 25 and 32 to the financial statements.

19. INVENTORIES

Raw materials and consumables
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2022
HK$'000

85,820

2021
HK$'000

70,189




CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

19.

20,

INVENTORIES (continued)
" The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included in profit or loss is
as follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amount of inventories consumed 991,870 946,643
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current
Other receivables 304,462 333,489
Less: Impairment ( 33,354 (6,967
271,108 326,522
VAT receivables 285,046 417,859
Prepayments - 27,428
556,154 771,809
Current
Trade receivables 3,808,432 2,548,697
Less: Impairment ( 446,835) ( 252,045)
3,361,597 2,296,652
Other receivables and sundry deposits 126,497 103,817
Less: Impairment ( 17,516) ( 13,383)
108,981 90,434
VAT receivables 165,655 192,277
Amounts due from an associate 9,365 9,843
Prepayments 122,104 277,048
3,767,702 2,866,254
Total 4,323,856 3,638,063

The amounts due from an associate are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-bearing at a
rate of 4.75% (2021: 4.75%) per annum.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables are as follows:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of the year 252,045 97,246

Impairment losses recognised (note 8) 226,899 149,289
Impairment loss reversed (note 8) - ( 47,308)

Reversal of previous write-off of impairment loss - 47,308

Exchange realignment ( 32,109) 5,510

At the end of the year 446,835 252,045

The movements in allowance for expected credit losses of other receivables are as follows:

2022 2021

HKS$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of the year 20,350 3,521
Impairment losses recognised (note 8) 33,829 16,451
Exchange realignment ( 3,309) 378
At the end of the year 50,870 20,350

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Trade receivables mainly
represent revenue from the provision of operation services and the billed amounts of the contract
assets. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group has applied the simplified approach for providing impairment for ECLs prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The ECLs below also incorporate forward looking information. The impairment

was determined as follows:

Past due
more than
Past due 1 year but Past due
within within over
Current 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
31 December 2022:
Expected loss rate 7.1% 5.7% 25.8% 62.6% 11.7%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 898,591 2,208,766 492,460 208,615 3,808,432
Impairment (HKS$'000) 63,597 125,733 126,867 130,638* 446,835
31 December 2021:
Expected loss rate 2.6% 4.6% 14.9% 61.2% 9.9%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 800,331 1,173,035 379,138 196,193 2,548,697
Impairment (HK$'000) 21,120 54,386 56,496 120,043* 252,045
n The impairment included an amount of HK$19,408,000 (2021: HK$14,257,000) made for specific trade
receivables which were considered in default due to indicators which showed that the Group was
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full.
* The impairment included an amount of HK$111,997,000 (2021: HK$114,275,000) made for specific

trade receivables which were considered in default due to indicators which showed that the Group was

unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full.

Included in "Trade and other receivables" of the Group as at 31 December 2022 were trade
receivables of HK$3,361,597,000 (2021: HK$2,296,652,000), of which (a) nil (2021:
HK$11,657,000) was due from a non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary, and
(b) HK$13,963,000 (2021: HK$14,211,000) were due from a related company of a non wholly-

owned subsidiary.

Included in "Other receivables" of the Group as at 31 December 2022 were government
compensation receivables of HK$281,585,000 (2021: HK$308,020,000) arising from the disposals
of service concession arrangement-related intangible assets and contract assets in connection to
relocation and expansion of waste water treatment plants of Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited, for
which impairment of HK$22,105,000 (2021: HK$6,967,000) was provided as at 31 December 2022.
The amount will be settled before 31 December 2024.

63



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

20.

21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in "Other receivables and sundry deposits" of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are
government compensation receivables of HK$26,508,000 (2021: HK$19,381,000) arising from

compensation of sludge disposal cost as stipulated in the concession service agreement of Everbright
Water (Beijing) Limited.

Included in "Other receivables and sundry deposits" of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are
consideration receivables of HK$6,394,000 (2021: HK$8,095,000) due from third parties arising
from the disposals of service concession rights held by Sugian City Cheng Bei Water Treatment Co.,
Ltd. and Sugian City Cheng Bei Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd. years ago, for which impairment of
HK$2,283,000 (2021: HK$2,382,000) was provided as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's concession rights of the environmental water
projects (comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract assets and trade receivables)
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$5,678,280,000 (2021: HK$5,786,528,000) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details of which
are included in notes 24, 25 and 32 to the financial statements.

All the current portions of the above balances are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted investments, at fair value (note) 186,219 222,880
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 35,498 36,122
Total 221,717 259,002
Less: Non-current portion - ( 36,122)

Current portion 221,717 222,880

The above unlisted investments were wealth management products issued by financial institutions in
Hong Kong and the above unlisted equity investment represents the 6% interest in Yancheng CCCC
Shanghai Dredging Water Environment Investment Co., Ltd. The wealth management products
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at FVPL as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.
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22.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cash on hand and bank balances 2,844,990 2,281,001
Restricted bank balances and pledged bank deposits 917 985

2,845,907 2,281,986

As at 31 December 2022, the pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks for the issuance of
guarantees by the banks to the grantors in respect of the specific performance duties by the Group
under certain services concession agreements.

Included in "Cash and cash equivalents” of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are deposits of
HK$105,290,000 (2021: HK$199,771,000) placed with a related party bank, which is a fellow
subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$2,845,907,000 (2021: HK$2,248,575,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2022, cash at banks of the Group were considered to be of low credit risk, and

thus the Group has assessed that the ECL for cash at banks is immaterial under the 12-month
expected losses method.
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23,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2022 2021
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Trade payables 2,278,842 2,307,616
Distribution payable to holders of perpetual capital instruments 13,672 -
Dividend payable to a non-controlling shareholder of
a non wholly-owned subsidiary 5,364 -
Interest payable 128,912 125,637
Payable for acquisition - 10,023
VAT and other tax payables 31,144 30,977
Other creditors and accrued expenses 710,178 741,420
Total 3,168,112 3,215,673

Trade payables totalling HK$1,653,099,000 (2021: HK$1,742,243,000) as at 31 December 2022
represent construction payables for the Group's BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements. The
construction payables are not yet due for payment.

Included in "Trade payables” of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are trade payables of
HK$67,617,000 (2021: HK$80,889,000) due to non-controlling shareholders of non wholly-owned
subsidiaries, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on credit terms similar to those offered
by the non-controlling shareholders to their major customers.

Included in "Trade payables" of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are trade payables of
HK$4,816,000 (2021: HK$12,970,000) due to an associate, which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on credit terms similar to those offered by the associate to its major customers.

Included in "Other creditors and accrued expenses” of the Group as at 31 December 2022 is a
guarantee deposit of HK$14,229,000 (2021: HK$14,102,000) from a former director of a subsidiary.

Included in "Other creditors and accrued expenses" of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are other
payables of HK$215,053,000 (2021: HK$228,468,000) due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
non wholly-owned subsidiary, which are unsecured, interest-bearing at the rates announced by the
People's Bank of China and repayable on demand.
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24. BORROWINGS

2022
Maturity HK§$'000 Maturity
Non-current
Bank loans - secured 2024 - 2039 1,954,369 2023 - 2039
Bank loans - unsecured 2024 -2037 © 4,605,701 2023 - 2037
Bonds payable - secured (note 25) - 2023
Bonds payable - unsecured (note 25) 2024 - 2025 3,015,630 2023 - 2024
9,575,700
Current
Bank loans - secured 2023 183,105 2022
Bank loans - unsecured 2023 2,236,241 2022
Bonds payable - secured (note 25) 2023 154,202 2022
Bonds payable - unsecured (note 25) 2023 3,112,887 2022
5,686,435
15,262,135
2022
HK$'000
Analysed into:
Borrowings repayable:
Within one year or on demand 5,686,435
In the second year 3,767,538
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 3,326,368
Beyond five years 2,481,794
15,262,135

67

2021

HK$'000

1,952,995
5,522,513
168,679

3,405,723

11,049,910

316,454
1,299,777
69,060

1,706,737
3,392,028

14,441,938

2021
HK$'000

3,392,028
4,310,110
4,437,097

2,302,703

14,441,938
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24.

BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by certain revenue,
contract assets, receivables and intangible assets in connection with the Group's service concession
arrangements and the equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the Group. Such banking facilities,
amounting to HK$3,154,472,000 (2021: HK$4,308,051,000), were utilised to the extent of
HK$2,137,474,000 (2021: HK$2,269,449,000) at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the unsecured banking facilities, amounting to HK$9,718,867,000 (2021:
HK$11,047,629,000), were utilised to the extent of HK$6,841,942,000 (2021: HK$6,822,290,000).
Among the unsecured banking facilities of the Group, HK$1,232,109,000 (2021: HK$996,964,000)
are guaranteed by the Company and were utilised to the extent of HK$698,544,000 (2021:
HK$696,964,000) as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, banking facilities of HK$6,586,105,000 (2021: HK$8,368,757,000) are
subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group's financial ratios. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. At 31
December 2022, such facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$5,354,348,000 (2021:
HK$6,285,589,000). The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Certain
banking facilities also restrict some of the Company's subsidiaries from declaring or paying
dividends to shareholders without obtaining prior written approval of the banks or require the Group
to process waste water treatment operating fee via respective financial institutions. Further details
of the Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's bank loans of HK$8,979,416,000 (2021: HK$9,091,739,000)
bear interest at variable rates ranging from 1.72% to 5.94% (2021: 1.29% to 4.90%) per annum, and
bonds payable of HK$6,282,719,000 (2021: HK$5,350,199,000) bear interest at fixed rates ranging
from 1.72% to 3.99% (2021: 3.20% to 3.99%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's bank loans of HK$411,553,000 (2021: HK$1,108,516,000)
are denominated in US$, HK$5,002,452,000 (2021: HK$4,562,732,000) are denominated in RMB,
HK$197,215,000 (2021: HK$21,133,000) are denominated in Euro ("EUR"), and
HK$3,368,196,000 (2021: HK$3,399,358,000 ) are denominated in HKS$.
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2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current
ABS - secured - 168,679
Corporate bonds - unsecured 782,227 965,958
MTN - unsecured 2,233,403 2,439,765
3,015,630 3,574,402

Current

ABS - secured 154,202 69,060
Corporate bonds - unsecured 881,127 1,706,737
MTN - unsecured 1,114,360 -
SCP - unsecured 1,117,400 -
3,267,089 1,775,797

6,282,719 5,350,199

In April 2020, the Company received a notice of registration acceptance issued by National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors of the People's Republic of China (the
"Notice") in respect of the RMB-denominated MTN, with registered amount of RMB3 billion,
effective for two years since the Notice was issued. On 4 August 2020, the Company issued the first
tranche of RMB-denominated MTN with a principal amount of RMB1 billion, before related
expenses of RMB3,704,000, with an interest rate at 3.60% per annum, and a maturity period of three
years from the issuance date. The interest shall be paid annually from 5 August 2020 and up to the
redemption date.

In January 2021, the Company issued the second tranche of RMB-denominated MTN with a
principal amount of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMB3,000,000, with an interest rate
at 3.75% per annum and a maturity period of three years from the issuance date. The interest shall
be paid annually from January 2021 and up to the redemption date. In August 2021, the Company
issued the first tranche of RMB-denominated SCP of RMB800 million, with an interest rate at
2.40% per annum and redemption date of 8 December 2021. The interest shall be paid on the
redemption date together with the principal. The Company has repaid the principal and interest of
the first tranche of RMB-denominated SCP on 8 December 2021.

In April 2022, the Company issued the third tranche of RMB-denominated MTN with a principal
amount of RMBI1 billion, before related expenses of RMB3,000,000, with an interest rate at 3.10%
per annum and a maturity period of three years from the issuance date. The interest shall be paid
annually from April 2022 and up to the redemption date. In September 2022, the Company issued
the third tranche of RMB-denominated SCP of RMB1,000 million, with an interest rate at 1.72% per
annum and redemption date of 18 March 2023.
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BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

The Company submitted the application to the Shanghai Stock Exchange ("SSE") on 28 November
2019 for a possible issuance of ABS by Everbright Water (Shenzhen) Limited ("Shenzhen Water"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to qualified investors in the PRC pursuant to an asset-
backed securities scheme (the "Scheme"). On 26 March 2020, the SSE issued a no-objection letter
(the "No-objection Letter") confirming that it had no objections to the potential issuance of ABS.
Pursuant to the No-objection Letter, the issuance size of the ABS shall not be more than RMB300
million and the issuance of ABS shall be completed within 12 months from the date of the No-
objection Letter.

On 17 June 2020, the ABS were successfully issued with total amount of RMB300 million, of which
the preference ABS amounting to RMB285 million were subscribed by qualified investors in the
PRC and the subordinate ABS amounting to RMB15 million was subscribed by Shenzhen Water.

The original beneficiary of the securities is Shenzhen Water. The underlying assets of the ABS are
the rights, of three project companies in Liaoning Province in relation to four waste water treatment
projects, to receive waste water treatment fees during a specific period of five years starting from 1
March 2020. The relevant project companies have pledged part of the underlying assets in favour of
the Scheme.

The preference ABS are classified into five classes based on the maturity dates of such preference
ABS, comprising:

(a) Preference ABS 01 of RMB50,000,000 ("Preference ABS 1");
(b) Preference ABS 02 of RMBS54,500,000 ("Preference ABS 2");
(©) Preference ABS 03 of RMB57,000,000 ("Preference ABS 3");
(d) Preference ABS 04 of RMB60,500,000 ("Preference ABS 4"); and
(e) Preference ABS 05 of RMB63,000,000 ("Preference ABS 5").

The principal and interest of the preference ABS are repayable pursuant to the repayment schedule
of the Scheme, with interest rates ranging from 3.38% to 3.99% per annum. The Company has the
option to adjust the interest rate of Preference ABS 4 and Preference ABS 5 before 26 March 2023
("The 12th Repayment Date"), to increase or decrease interest rate of no more than 200 base points
(1 base point equals to 0.01%). The holders of Preference ABS 4 and Preference ABS 5 have an
option to sell back the notes to the original beneficiary at the nominal price, and the exercisable
period of this option is from the 26th day before The 12th Repayment Date to the 17th day before
The 12th Repayment Date.

In 2022, the Company repaid the principal of RMB 14,000,000 (2021: RMB40,500,000) of
Preference ABS 2 and RMB42,500,000 (2021: Nil) of Preference ABS 3 according to the terms of
the ABS.
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On 21 July 2017, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement with the relevant financial
institution in relation to the issue of RMB-denominated corporate bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of not exceeding RMB2.5 billion (the "Corporate Bond") to the qualified investors in the
PRC.

On 24 July 2017 (the "First Issue Date"), the Company issued the first tranche of the Corporate
Bond with principal amount of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMB5,964,000, with a
maturity period of five years from the First Issue Date. The first tranche of the Corporate Bond
bears interest at a rate of 4.55% per annum and the interest will be repayable by the Company
annually from the First Issue Date and up to the maturity date. According to the terms of the
Corporate Bond, after three years from the First Issue Date, the Company is entitled to adjust the
interest rate of the first tranche of the Corporate Bond for the remaining two years before the
maturity date. The Company will announce the adjustment in interest rate, if any, 20 working days
prior to the payment of the interest for the third year after the First Issue Date. The bondholders
have an option to sell back the first tranche of the Corporate Bond to the Company at the nominal
price, and the exercisable period of this option is five working days immediately after the issuance
of the Company's announcement related to the adjustment in interest rate of the first tranche of the
Corporate Bond.

On 24 June 2020, the Company announced the adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the first
tranche of the Corporate Bond from 4.55% per annum to 3.28% per annum for the period from 24
July 2020 to 23 July 2022. The Company repurchased the first tranche of the Corporate Bond
totaling RMB650,000,000, of which RMB350,000,000 had been resold and the remaining
RMB300,000,000 had been cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2021.

On 16 August 2018 (the "Second Issue Date"), the Company issued the second tranche of the
Corporate Bond with principal amount of RMB800 million, before related expenses of
RMB4,171,000, with a maturity period of five years from the Second Issue Date. The second
tranche of the Corporate Bond comprises two types of bonds: (i) bonds with principal amount of
RMB400 million which bear interest at a rate of 4.60% per annum, and (ii) bonds with principal
amount of RMB400 million which bear interest at a rate of 4.58% per annum. The interest will be
repayable by the Company annually from the Second Issue Date and up to the maturity date.
According to the terms of the Corporate Bond, after three years from the Second Issue Date, the
Company is entitled to adjust the interest rate of the second tranche of the Corporate Bond for the
remaining two years before the maturity date. The Company will announce the adjustment in
interest rate, if any, 20 working days prior to the payment of the interest for the third year after the
Second Issue Date. The bondholders have an option to sell back the second tranche of the Corporate
Bond to the Company at the nominal price, and the exercisable period of this option is five working
days immediately after the issuance of the Company's announcement related to the adjustment in
interest rate of the second tranche of the Corporate Bond.

In July 2021, the Company announced the adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the first type
of the second tranche of the Corporate Bond from 4.60% per annum to 3.20% per annum for the
period from 16 August 2021 to 15 August 2023. In July 2021, the Company announced the
adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the second type of the second tranche of the Corporate
Bond from 4.58% per annum to 3.20% per annum for the period from 16 August 2021 to 15 August
2023.
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26.

BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

The Company repurchased the first type of second tranche of the Corporate Bond totaling
RMB79,100,000, of which RMB70,000,000 had been resold and the remaining RMB9,100,000 had
been cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company repurchased the second
type of second tranche of the Corporate Bond totaling RMB183,050,000, of which
RMB180,000,000 had been resold and the remaining RMB3,050,000 had been cancelled during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

On 21 January 2019 (the "Third Issue Date"), the Company issued the third tranche of the Corporate
Bond with principal amount of RMB700 million, before related expenses of RMB3,632,000, with a
maturity period of five years from the Third Issue Date. The third tranche of the Corporate Bond
bears interest at a rate of 3.89% per annum. The interest will be repayable by the Company annually
from the Third Issue Date and up to the maturity date. According to the terms of the Corporate
Bond, after three years from the Third Issue Date, the Company is entitled to adjust the interest rate
of the third tranche of the Corporate Bond for the remaining two years before the maturity date. The
Company will announce the adjustment in interest rate, if any, 20 working days prior to the payment
of the interest for the third year after the Third Issue Date. The bondholders have an option to sell
back the third tranche of the Corporate Bond to the Company at the nominal price, and the
exercisable period of this option is five working days immediately after the issuance of the
Company's announcement related to the adjustment in interest rate of the third tranche of the
Corporate Bond. The Company announced the adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the third
tranche of the Corporate Bond from 3.89% per annum to 3.08% per annum for the period from 21
January 2022 to 20 January 2024.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Fair value
adjustments arising
from acquisition

of a subsidiary

HKS$'000

At 1 January 2021 -

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) 8,122
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss (note 9) (2,107)

Exchange realignment 112

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 6,127
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss (note 9) (2,462)
Exchange realignment ( 412)

At 31 December 2022 3,253
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Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary
differences
Fair value on assets
adjustments recognised
arising from under Undistributed
acquisition of = HK(IFRIC)- profits of
subsidiaries Int 12 subsidiaries Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2021 177,814 1,311,930 312,104 29) 1,801,819
Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to profit or loss (note 9) ( 8,951 119,322 89,166 - 199,537
Exchange realignment 7,055 43,929 11,398 (n 62,381
At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022 175,918 1,475,181 412,668 (30) 2,063,737
Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to profit or loss (note 9) ( 11,684) 28,755 55,254 - 72,325
Exchange realignment ( 19,885) ( 127,522) ( 37,968) 3 ( 185,372)
At 31 December 2022 144,349 1,376,414 429,954 27) 1,950,690

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately HK$203,447,000
(2021: HK$107,188,000) as at 31 December 2022 that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets in
respect of such tax losses arising in Mainland China have not been recognised as they have arisen in
certain subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
Jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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27.

28.

SHARE CAPITAL
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
10,000,000,000 (2021: 10,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of par value of HK$1.00 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
2,860,876,723 (2021: 2,860,876,723)
ordinary shares of par value of HK$1.00 each 2,860,877 2,860,877
RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the Company and foreign operations whose
functional currencies are different from the Group's presentation currency.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the People's Republic of China, the subsidiaries in
the PRC are required to allocate 10% of the statutory after-tax profits to the statutory reserve
until the cumulative total of the reserve reaches 50% of the subsidiaries' registered capital.
Subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the statutory reserve may be used to
offset any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution to shareholders of the PRC
subsidiaries.

Contributed surplus reserve

Contributed surplus reserve arose from the reduction of share premium. Pursuant to the
special resolution at the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 15 December
2015, the entire amount standing to the credit of the Company's share premium was reduced
to nil and transferred to the contributed surplus reserve.

Other reserves

Other reserves comprise capital reserve and other reserve.
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29.

30.

PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January - -
Issuance of perpetual capital instruments 806,982 -
Share of profit for the year 14,334 -
Distribution to holders of perpetual capital instruments ( 14,334) -

At 31 December 806,982 -

In June 2022, the Company issued a perpetual capital instrument with a principal amount of
RMB700,000,000. Net proceeds after deducting the issuance costs amounted to RMB697,900,000
(equivalent to HK$806,982,000). The distribution rate for the perpetual capital instrument is 3.3%
per annum for the first three years from the date of issuance, and subsequently the distribution rate
will be reset every three years.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 21 January 2021, one of the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, Beijing Everbright
Water Investment Management Co., Ltd. signed an equity transfer agreement, the supplementary
agreement to the equity transfer agreement and the cooperation agreement with Tianjin Binhai
Environmental Protection Asset Development Co., Ltd. to acquire 65% interest in Tianjin Binhai
New Area Huantang Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. ("Tianjin Huantang"). Tianjin Huantang is
principally engaged in waste water treatment and recycling; pipeline engineering; municipal
engineering; construction, management, operation, technical consultation and ancillary services of
waste water treatment and reusable water facilities; R&D and operation of environmental protection
technology and environmental protection products; renewable resources utilisation and operation;
sludge dewatering treatment and its application. The acquisition was made as part of the Group's
strategy to expand the water business of the Group. The purchase consideration for the acquisition
was in the form of cash, with consideration for the acquisition amounting to RMB666,336,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$800,136,000). The acquisition was completed on 1 March 2021.
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30.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The purchase price accounting for the business combination of Tianjin Huantang was completed.
The table below sets forth the fair values of assets acquired and the liabilities assumed recognised at
the acquisition date.

2021

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

Notes HK$'000

Property, plant and equipment 12 898,601

Intangible assets 15 28

Right-of-use assets 14 94,143

Trade and other receivables 379,585

Cash and cash equivalents 5,520

Inventories 9,217

Deferred tax assets 26 8,122
Current liabilities (459,057)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value 936,159
Non-controlling interests (327,656)

608,503

Goodwill on acquisition 16 191,633

Satisfied by cash 800,136

The fair value of the trade and other receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to
HK$379,585,000. The gross contractual amount of trade and other receivables was
HK$546,296,000, of which HK$166,711,000 is expected to be uncollectible.

The non-controlling interests in Tianjin Huantang recognised at the acquisition date were measured
with reference to the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the fair value of net assets of
Tianjin Huantang at that date.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$4,453,000 for this acquisition. These transaction costs

were expensed and included in "Administrative and other operating expenses" in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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31.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of Tianjin Huantang is as follows:

2021
HK$'000
Cash consideration (800,136)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 5,520
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
included in cash flows from investing activities (794,616)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in
cash flows from operating activities ( 4,453)
(799,069)

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.

Since the acquisition, Tianjin Huantang contributed HK$192,521,000 to the Group's revenue and
incurred a loss of HK$41,624,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Had the transaction taken place on 1 January 2021, the consolidated revenue and profit of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been HK$6,959,929,000 and HK$1,297,162,000,
respectively. In determining these amounts, management assumed that the fair value adjustments to
the acquired assets and liabilities that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the same if
the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions

(1) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the interest expenses on corporate bonds,
MTN and SCP of HK$121,613,000 (2021: HK$118,188,000) were not yet settled
by the Group, and recorded in "Trade and other payables" in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and have no cash flow
impact to the Group.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the distribution to holders of the first
tranche of perpetual capital instruments of HK$13,672,000 (2021: Nil) was not yet
settled by the Group, and recorded in "Trade and other payables" in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and have no cash flow
impact to the Group.

(iii)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the non-controlling shareholder of a non
wholly-owned subsidiary made capital contribution of HK$5,059,000 to the non
wholly-owned subsidiary by using dividends declared in 2019, and have no cash
flow impact to the Group.
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31

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Dividend
payable
to non-
controlling
shareholders
of non
Bonds Interest wholly-owned
Bank loans  payable payable  subsidiaries
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2021 7,003,805 4,074,328 85,745 17,025
Changes from financing cash flows 1,954,886 1,120,423 (380,488) (43,956)
Finance costs - - 435,302 -
Dividends declared to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - 26,582
Foreign exchange movement 133,048 155,448 ( 14,922) 349
At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022 9,091,739 5,350,199 125,637 -
Changes from financing cash flows 267,952 1,574,448 (503,664) (17,573)
Finance costs - - 544,013 -
Dividend declared to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary - - - 22,219
Foreign exchange movement ( 380,275) ( 641,928) ( 37,074) 718
At 31 December 2022 8,979,416 6,282,719 128,912 5,364

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement of cash flows is as

follows:

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

2022

HK$'000

4,188

10,931

2021
HK$'000

2,835
10,584

Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group's ABS and banking facilities are included in
notes 24 and 25 to the financial statements. The aggregate net book value of assets and equity
interests in subsidiaries pledged amounted to HK$6,281,733,000 (2021: HK$8,509,838,000) as at 31

December 2022.
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33. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following commitments at the end of the reporting period:

&) Purchase commitments outstanding in connection with the Group's construction contracts

were as follows:

Contracted but not provided for

2022
HK$'000

2,017,857

2021
HK$'000

1,698,521

(b) At 31 December 2022, the Group had an outstanding capital commitment of HK$23,329,000
(2021: HK$25,519,000) relating to the capital contribution to an unlisted equity investment.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the

Group entered into the following material related party transactions during the year:

(@ The Group entered into the following related party transactions with non-controlling

shareholders of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group:

2022 2021
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Revenue from project operation service 91,401 96,523
Finance income 15,161 17,123
Cost of construction service 182,205 70,711
(b) The Group entered into the following related party transactions with a related company of
the Group:
2022 2021
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Revenue from project operation service 119,038 107,417
Finance income 50,714 53,366
(©) The Group entered into the following related party transactions with an associate of the
Group:
2022 2021
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Service expenses for operation of waste water
treatment plants 48,886 59,640
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34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries of
the Group:

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Rental expenses ) - 18
Underwriting service fee (ii) 1,722 -
Insurance expenses (iii) 3,038 2,695
Healthcare protection services expenses (iv) 17,779 17,648
Notes:
(1) The rental expenses were charged by fellow subsidiaries and an intermediate
holding company of the Group on mutually agreed terms.
(ii) The underwriting service fee of the issuance of the perpetual capital instruments
paid to a fellow subsidiary was calculated pursuant to the relevant underwriting

agreement.

(iti)  The insurance expenses were charged by a fellow subsidiary of the Group on
mutually agreed terms.

(iv) The healthcare protection services expenses were charged by a fellow subsidiary of
the Group on mutually agreed terms.

Transactions with other stated-owned entities in Mainland China:

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by enterprises directly or
indirectly owned and/or controlled by the PRC government through its numerous
authorities, affiliates or other organisations (collectively "Other SOEs"). During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group had transactions with the Other SOEs including, but
not limited to the waste water treatment service, bank deposits and borrowings, and utilities
consumption. The directors of the Company consider that the transactions with the Other
SOEs are activities in the ordinary course of the Group's business, and that the dealings of
the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and the
Other SOEs are ultimately controlled or owned by the PRC government. The Group has
also established pricing policies for products and services and such pricing policies are not
carried out on non-market terms and do not depend on whether or not the customers are the
Other SOEs. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that none of these transactions is a material related party
transaction that would require separate disclosure.
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34.

35.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

® The Group paid key management personnel compensation as follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Directors' fees, salaries and other short-term
employee benefit 23,027 25,892
Defined contribution plans 2,271 1,969
25,298 27,861

(2) The Group has rental contracts with fellow subsidiaries of the Group. As at 31 December
2022, the Group's right-of-use assets relating to such rental contracts from fellow
subsidiaries of the Group amounted to HK$2,572,000 (2021: HK$3,153,000) and lease
liabilities of HK$2,545,000 (2021: HK$3,169,000) are due to fellow subsidiaries of the
Group.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, current
portion of other receivables, trade payables, other payables, lease liabilities, and borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's financial management department is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
financial management department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit committee
twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a

forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of other receivables, other payables, lease liabilities, and
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group's own
non-performance risk for borrowings as at 31 December 2022 was assessed to be insignificant.
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35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of unlisted investments at FVPL are based on net asset value of the investees which
approximate to the fair value.

The fair value of unlisted equity investment at FVPL is based on the expected future cash flows of
the investment.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial instruments
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2022:

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input ~ Range value to the input
Unlisted equity Discounted cash Discount rate 2.8% 1% (2021: 1%) increase
investment at flow method (2021: 2.8%) (decrease) in discount rate
FVPL would result in
decrease in fair value
by HK$110,000

(2021: HK$112,000) or
increase in fair value
by HK$111,000

(2021: HK$113,000)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2022
Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Unlisted investments at FVPL - 186,219 - 186,219
Unlisted equity investment at FVPL - - 35,498 35,498

- 186,219 35,498 221,117
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Unlisted investments at FVPL - 222,880 - 222,880
Unlisted equity investment at FVPL - - 36,122 36,122
- 222,880 36,122 259,002

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

Unlisted equity investment at FVPL:
At 1 January 36,122 34,051
Fair value gain (note 6) 2,597 968
Exchange realignment ( 3,221) 1,103
At 31 December 35,498 36,122

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2021: Nil).
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2022

Financial assets

Financial

assets at Financial

amortised assets
cost at FVPL Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets included in trade and other receivables 3,751,051 - 3,751,051
Other financial assets - 221,717 221,717
Cash and cash equivalents 2,845,907 - 2,845,907
6,596,958 221,717 6,818,675

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

HK$'000

Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables 2,909,074
Borrowings 15,262,135
18,171,209
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

2021

Financial assets

Financial

assets at Financial

amortised assets
cost at FVPL Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets included in trade and other receivables 2,723,451 - 2,723,451
Other financial assets - 259,002 259,002
Cash and cash equivalents 2,281,986 - 2,281,986
5,005,437 259,002 5,264,439

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

HK$'000

Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables 3,019,103
Borrowings 14,441,938
17,461,041

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise borrowings and cash. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group's accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.5 to the financial statements.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group's cash and cash equivalents,
borrowings and balances with group companies. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

@

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's net borrowings (being
interest-bearing financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and other interest-bearing
financial assets) at the end of the reporting period.

2022 2021
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
Net fixed rate borrowings/(deposits):
Borrowings 1.72-3.99 6,282,719 3.20-3.99 5,350,199
Less: Amount due from an associate 4.75 ( 9,365) 475 ( 9,843)
6,273,354 5,340,356
Net variable rate borrowings/(deposits):
Borrowings 1.72 - 5.94 8,979,416 1.29-4.90 9,091,739
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 0.00-1.85 ( 2,845,907) 0.01-2.03 ( 2,281,986)
6,133,509 6,809,753
Total net borrowings 12,406,863 12,150,109

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of one percent in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's
profit before tax by approximately HK$124,069,000 (2021: HK$121,501,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit
before tax that would arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to remeasure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group's profit before tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis was performed on the
same basis for 2021.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

®

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily from borrowings, cash and cash

equivalents, receivables and payables that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The

currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily HK$, RMB, US$, SGD and EUR.

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in HKS, translated using the spot rate at the end of
the reporting period. Differences resulting from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency are excluded.

Cash and cash equivalents

Borrowings

Amounts due from/(to) group companies, net
Trade and other payables

Cash and cash equivalents

Borrowings

Amounts due from/(to) group companies, net
Trade and other payables
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Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in HK$)
At 31 December 2022
RMB SGD HKS$ US$ EUR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
62,736 10,098 248,533 53,997 -
- - (2,172,925)  (411,553) (197,215)
(694,383) (55 3,312,305 23 34,832
( 4.833) (2,119 ( 5,738) ( 134) ( 151)
(636,480) 7,924 1,382,175 (357,667) (162,534)
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HKS$)
At 31 December 2021
RMB SGD HK$ US$ EUR
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HX$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
9,545 5,131 11,233 121,810 -
- - (2,702,395) (1,108,516) (21,133)
(12,834) ( 54) 2,842,691 - 25,496
( 5,895) (3,648) ( 5,611) ( 6,762) ( 4)
(9,184) 1,429 145,918 ( 993,468) 4,359
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit before tax that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$ and the

US$ would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the

US$ against other currencies. Except for those subsidiaries with their functional currencies
other than HK$, the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations with respect to the assets
and liabilities denominated in US$ is insignificant as the HKS$ is pegged to the USS.

As at 31 December

2022 2021
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange rate before tax ~ exchange rate before tax
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
RMB 10 ( 63,648) 10 ( 918)
(10) 63,648 (10) 918
SGD 10 792 10 143
(10) ( 792 (10) ( 143)
HK$ 10 138,218 10 14,592
(10) (138,218) (10) (14,592)
US$ 10 ( 14,564) 10 44,388
(10) 14,564 (10) (44,388)
EUR 10 ( 16,253) 10 436
(10) 16,253 10) ( 436)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities' profit before tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to remeasure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2021.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Debts are usually due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.

Trade receivables of the Group represent receivables in respect of revenue from environmental
water project operation services which are settled on a monthly basis. In addition, the Group has
contract assets in respect of the Build-Transfer ("BT"), BOT, TOT and certain BOO arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, "Trade and other receivables" and "Contract assets" amounted to
HK$25,411,362,000 (2021: HK$25,378,853,000), of which HK$4,042,740,000 (2021:
HK$4,629,965,000) were due from the largest customer and HK$8,014,382,000 (2021:
HK$8,843,599,000) were due from the five largest customers in aggregate of the Group,
respectively. Since the parties to BT, BOT, TOT and BOO arrangements are local government
authorities in the PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Management groups financial instruments on basis of shared credit risk characteristics, such as
instrument type and credit risk ratings for the purpose of determining significant increase in credit risk
and calculation of impairment. The carrying amounts of each financial asset in the consolidated

statement of financial position represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

To manage credit risk arising from trade receivables and contract assets, the credit quality of the
debtors is assessed, taking into account their financial position, historical settlement records, past
experience and other factors. The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. The ECLs also incorporated forward looking information.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, of whether a financial instrument's
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of
default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The Group groups its other
receivables into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1 When other receivables are first recognised, the Group recognised an allowance based on
12 months' ECL.

Stage 2 When other receivables have shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the Group records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 Other receivables considered credit-impaired. The Group records an allowance for the
lifetime ECLs.

Management also makes periodic collective assessments for other receivables as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience and other factors. The Group classified other receivables in Stage 1 and continuously
monitored their credit risk. Management believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group's outstanding balance of other receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, all cash and cash equivalents were deposited with creditworthy financial
institutions without significant credit risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from "Contract
assets" as well as "Trade and other receivables" are set out in notes 18 and 20 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

Financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Borrowings*

Financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Borrowings*

2022

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year 2 years
Carrying undiscounted l1yearor butwithin butwithin More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,909,074 2,909,074 2,909,074 - - -
3,007 3,580 2,733 382 65 400
15,262,135 16,706,762 5,970,717 4,080,570 3,756,098 2,899,377
18,174,216 19,619,416 8,882,524 4,080,952 3,756,163 2,899,777

2021

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year 2 years
Carrying undiscounted l yearor but within but within More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
3,019,103 3,019,103 3,019,103 - - -
6,402 6,790 5,383 874 72 461
14,441,938 16,075,274 3,774,419 4,715,394 4,882,834 2,702,627
17,467,443 19,101,167 6,798,905 4,716,268 4,882,906 2,703,088
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

* Included in borrowings are ABS and Corporate Bond with a carrying amount of
HK$154,202,000 (2021: HK$237,739,000) and nil (2021: HK$2,672,695,000), respectively,
containing options to sell back the ABS or Corporate Bond to the Group. For the purpose of
the above maturity profile, the total contractual undiscounted cash flow amount of
HK$155,115,000 (2021: HK$246,086,000) related to ABS is presented as: HK$155,115,000
classified as repayable "within 1 year or on demand" as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$76,409,000 classified as repayable "within 1 year or on demand" and HK$169,677,000
classified as repayable "more than 1 year but within 2 years"). As at 31 December 2021, the
total contractual undiscounted cash flow amount of HK$2,737,331,000 related to the
Corporate Bond was presented as: HK$1,756,275,000 classified as repayable "within 1 year or
on demand" and HK$981,056,000 classified as repayable "more than 1 year but within 2
years".

The ABS will be due for repayment on the respective maturity dates unless being sold back
to the Group prior to the maturity pursuant to the terms of ABS. In accordance with the
terms of the ABS, the maturity terms as at 31 December 2022 are HK$70,907,000 in 2023,
HK$89,816,000 in 2024 to 2025 (2021: HK$76,409,000 in 2022, HK$77,563,000 in 2023
and HK$98,249,000 in 2024 to 2025).

The Corporate Bond will be due for repayment on the respective maturity dates unless being
sold back to the Group prior to the maturity pursuant to the terms of the Corporate Bond. In
accordance with the terms of the Corporate Bond, the maturity terms as at 31 December
2021 were HK$934,131,000 in 2022, HK$1,014,522,000 in 2023 and HK$855,610,000 in
2024 to 2026.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise
shareholders' value.

In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend payment, issue new shares or obtain new borrowings. The Group's strategies are to
maintain a prudent balance between the advantage and flexibility afforded by a sound capital
position and the higher return on equity that is possible with greater leverage. There is no change in
capital management policies during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

Consistently, the Group monitors capital based on a net debt against equity ratio. The net debt
against equity ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
liabilities (as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group, excluding lease
liabilities, tax payables and deferred tax liabilities) less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity
comprises share capital, reserves, perpetual capital instruments and non-controlling interests.

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade and other payables 3,168,112 3,215,673

Borrowings 15,262,135 14,441,938
Less: Cash and cash equivalents ( 2,845,907 ( 2,281,986)

Net debt 15,584,340 15,375,625

Total equity 13,000,878 13,163,232

Net debt against equity ratio 120% 117%

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group's financial ratios as disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the Group does not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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38.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(2)

®)

(c)

On 20 February 2023, the Company announced that it had entered into a project agreement
and the first supplementary agreement with China Railway No.1 Engineering Group
Municipal Works Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd. and Shandong Liaocheng Luxi
Economic Development Zone Management Committee to secure the Shen County Waste
Water Treatment (Plant 3) and Ancillary Pipeline Network Public-Private Partnership
Project (the "Project") in Liaocheng City, Shandong Province based on a BOT model with
an investment amount of approximately RMB668,000,000. The Project comprises, inter
alia, a waste water treatment plant with a designed daily waste water treatment capacity of
60,000 m? and has a concession period of 30 years.

On 9 March 2023, the Company announced its completion of the issuance of the fourth
tranche of RMB-denominated SCP in mainland China with a principal amount of RMB1
billion, with an interest rate of 2.60% per annum and a maturity period of 180 days.

In March 2023, the Company received a notice of registration acceptance issued by National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors of the People's Republic of China in
respect of the RMB-denominated MTN, with registered principal amount of RMBS5 billion,
effective for two years since the notice was issued. On 17 April 2023, the Company
announced its completion of the issuance of the first tranche of RMB-denominated MTN in
2023 in mainland China with a principal amount of RMB1 billion, with an interest rate of
3.20% per annum, and a maturity period of five years from the issuance date.
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39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting

period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables

Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables
Borrowings

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capital

Reserves

Perpetual capital instruments

TOTAL EQUITY
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2022
HK$'000

10,618,932

9,611,167
186,219

98,085

9,895,471

145,880

4,634,455
4,780,335
5,115,136

15,734,068

4,772,482

10,961,586

2,860,877

7,293,727

10,154,604

806,982

10,961,586

2021
HK$'000

11,505,621

8,483,239
222,880

134,962

8,841,081

147,539

2,897,360
3,044,899
5,796,182

17,301,803

6,047,143

11,254,660

2,860,877

8,393,783

11,254,660

11,254,660
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31 December 2022

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Name

Anshan City Water Operating
Co., Ltd.” (note (4))

Beijing EW Corporate Management
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
"Beijing Everbright Water
Investment Management
Co., Ltd.")"

Beijing Hankesen Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd."

Bio-Treat International Limited

China Everbright Water
International Pte. Ltd.

China Everbright Water
Investments Limited

China Everbright Water
Management Limited

Dalian Bonded Area EW Water
Co., Ltd." (note (4))

Dalian EW Chunliuhe Water Co.,
Ltd." (note (3) & note (4))

Dalian EW Malanhe Water Co.,
Ltd." (note (3) & note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/

Mainland China

BVI

Singapore

BVI
Hong Kong
PRC/

Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
1,200,000,000

RMB
9,582,816

US$
10,000

SGD
5,000,000

US$2
HKS$100
RMB

10,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100
100 -
100 -
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatment

Business
management

R&D and
consultation
on water
treatment
technology

Investment
holding

Investment
holding,
technology
R&D,
business
development
and
management
services

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Dalian Pulandian Area EW Water
Co., Ltd.” (note (4))

EW Water (Dalian) Co., Ltd. "
(note (4))

Dalian Lvshun City Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd.
(note (4))

Dalian Lvshun Sanjianpu Waste
Water Treatment Co., Ltd."
(note (4))

Dalian Siergou Water Co., Ltd."
(note (3) & note (4))

Dandong EW Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd." (note (4))

Dandong EW Water Co., Ltd."
(note (4))

Dezhou EW Environmental
Protection Limited"
(note (4))

Shenyang Hunnan EW Water Co.,
Ltd." (note (4))

Tongliao City Northern Waste
Water Treatment Co., Ltd."
(note (4))

Dalian Zhuanghe EW Water Co.,
Ltd.” (note (4))

E+B Environmental Technology
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd"

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
PRC/
Mainland China
PRC/

Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
66,500,000

RMB
120,000,000

RMB
13,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
30,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
80,000,000

RMB
48,000,000

RMB
10,000,000
RMB
60,000,000
RMB

10,000,000

EUR
13,000,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Construction
management

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Ré&D and
consultation
on water
environmental
technologies



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name
E+B Umwelttechnik GmbH

Everbright Industrial Waste
Water Treatment Nanjing
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Reusable Water
(Jiangyin) Limited"

Everbright Reusable Water
(Nanjing) Limited”
(note (4))

Everbright Water (Tongxiang)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Haimen)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Huai'an)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright River Basin
Remediation (Nanjing)
Limited” (note (4))

Everbright Sponge City
Development (Zhenjiang)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Beijing)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Binzhou)
Limited” (note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

Germany

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

EUR
100,000
RMB
507,000,000
US$
20,000,000
US$
11,700,000

RMB
270,000,000

RMB
70,000,000

Uss$
20,000,000
RMB
92,000,000

RMB
462,000,000

RMB
119,310,000

RMB
95,061,700

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect

- 80

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 79.9

- 100
100 -
70 -
- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

R&D

Waste water
treatment

Reusable
water

Reusable
water

Construction
and operation
of wetland
ecological
engineering
project

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Waste water
treatment

River
restoration
works

Sponge city
construction,
operation
and R&D

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Everbright Water (Boxing)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Dezhou)
Holdings Limited

Everbright Water (Dezhou)
Limited” (note (4))

Everbright Water (Jiangyin)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Ji'nan Licheng)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Holdings
Limited

Everbright Water (Changzhou)
Limited" (note (4))

EW (Zibo Zhangdian) Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd* (note (4))

EW (Ji'nan Tangye) Water Limited*
(note (4))

Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited”
(note (4))

Everbright Water (Ji'nan Zhanggiu)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Juxian) Limited”
(note (4))

Everbright Water (Kunshan)
Limited” (note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/

Mainland China
Hong Kong
PRC/

Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

HK$
133,884,300
HK$100
US$
12,280,000

RMB
278,877,000

RMB
386,848,000

HKS$100

RMB
183,365,200

US$
4,925,000

RMB
104,291,600

US$
106,246,600

RMB
85,200,000

RMB
58,200,000

HKS$
100,000,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 70

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 99.9

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatment

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Waste water
freatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Everbright Water (Laiyang)
Limited*

Everbright Water (Lianyungang)
Limited” (note (4))

Everbright Water (Lingxian)
Limited” (note (4))

Everbright Water (Nanjing)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Nanning)
Limited ("EB Water
Nanning")* (note (3) & note (4))

Everbright Water (Qingdao)
Holdings Limited
("EW (Qingdao) Holdings")

Everbright Water (Qingdao)
Limited ("EB Water
Qingdao"y (note (4))

Everbright Water (Shenzhen)
Limited"

Everbright Water (Suzhou)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Wuxi) Holdings
Limited

Everbright Water (Xianyang)
Limited"
(note (3) & note (4))

Everbright Water Operating
(Xinyi) Limited* (note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

100

Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
169,521,765

HK$
157,150,387

Us$
18,388,200

RMB
96,186,423

RMB
488,690,000

HK$
10,710,680

USS$
89,561,700

HKS$
10,000,000

HK$
258,000,000

HKS$100

RMB
94,000,000

US$
19,496,300

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 90

- 100

- 100

- 100

79.6 -
Note (1)

- 100

Note (2)

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 60.4

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

River
restoration
works

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Investment
and
management
of water
business

Waste water
treatment

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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31 December 2022

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage

incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered attributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities

Direct Indirect
Everbright Water Purification PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Nanjing Limited” (note (4)) Mainland China 14,750,000 treatment
Everbright Water Suizhou PRC/ RMB 78.4 - River
Water Environment Mainland China 260,000,000 restoration
Management Limited* works

(note (4))
Everbright Water (Xinyi) PRC/ HK$ - 100  Waste water
Limited” Mainland China 174,590,000 treatment
Everbright Water (Xuzhou) Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment
Holdings Limited holding
EW Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB - 100 Leachate and
(Xuzhou) Co., Ltd.” Mainland China 15,438,000 waste water
treatment
Everbright Water (Yangzhou) PRC/ US$ - 100  Waste water
Limited" (note (4)) Mainland China 16,000,000 treatment
Everbright Water (Zhanggiu) PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Limited* (note (4)) Mainland China 30,349,700 treatment
Everbright Water (Zhanggiu) PRC/ RMB - 95  Waste water
Operating Limited” (note (4)) Mainland China 65,507,600 treatment and
operation
services
Everbright Water (Zibo Zhoucun) PRC/ HK$ - 100 Waste water
Water Purification Co., Ltd.” Mainland China 74,240,000 treatment
(note (4))

Everbright Water (Zibo) Holdings Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment
Limited holding
Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited" PRC/ US$ - 100  Waste water
(note (4)) Mainland China 85,666,900 treatment
Everbright Water Technology PRC/ RMB - 100 R&D and
Development (Nanjing) Mainland China 50,090,000 consultation
Limited” on technology
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(note (4))

102

Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered attributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities
Direct Indirect
Everbright Water Treatment PRC/ Us$ - 100  Waste water
(Jiangyin) Limited" Mainland China 100,000,000 treatment and
(note (4)) construction
and
maintenance
of pipeline
network
Hangsu Tongyong Environment PRC/ RMB - 100 Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd." Mainland China 55,080,000 engineering
Ji'nan Everbright Water PRC/ RMB - 80 Water supply,
Supply Limited* Mainland China 250,000,000 construction
(note (4)) and
operation of
water source
and water
supply facility
Ju County EW Water Limited" PRC/ HK$ - 100  Waste water
(note (4)) Mainland China 83,130,000 treatment and
reusable water
Ju County EW Waste Water PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Co., Ltd.” (note (4)) Mainland China 31,523,400 treatment and
reusable water
New Efficient Limited BVI Uss$100 - 100 Investment
holding
Ocean Force International BVI US$1 100 - Investment
Limited holding
Tianjin Huantang” PRC/ RMB - 65  Waste water
Mainland China 10,000,000 treatment
Shaanxi Risheng New Energy PRC/ RMB - 100 Solar energy
Technology Co., Ltd." Mainland China 20,000,000
Ji'nan EW Environment Management PRC/ USS$ - 100 Waste water
Limited* Mainland China 35,000,000 treatment
EW Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB - 95  Waste water
(Huanghua) Co., Ltd.* Mainland China 69,286,190 treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name
Shenzhen City EW Management
Limited Liability Company”

Oriental Fortune International
Limited

Panjin City Waste Water Treatment
Co., Ltd." (note (4))

Sanmenxia Everbright Water
Limited" (note (4))

Shanghai Weiyang Construction
Design Co., Ltd.”

Shenyang Dadong EW Water Co.,
Ltd." (note (4))

Sugian City Cheng Bei
Wastewater Treatment
Co., Ltd.”

Sugian City Cheng Bei Water
Treatment Co., Ltd."

Tianjin Hanquan Environment
Technology Limited*

Victor Best Holdings Limited

World Pioneer Investments Limited

Xuzhou Municipal Engineering
Design Institute Co., Ltd."

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/

Mainland China
Hong Kong
PRC/

Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
BVI

BVI

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB100

HK$10,000

RMB

44,000,000

RMB
22,000,000

RMB
1,000,000

RMB
13,000,000

RMB
22,107,650

RMB
26,403,650

HKS$
2,000,000

US$
50,000

US$100

RMB
50,000,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Business
management

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Survey,
mapping,
design and
consultancy
for municipal
projects

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Survey,
mapping,
design and
consultancy
for municipal
projects
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40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Zhuanghe City EW Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd."

Zibo Everbright Water Energy
Development Company
Limited" (note (3) & note (4))

EW Environmental Protection
(Yixing) Co., Ltd."

EW Environmental Protection
(Ji'nan Huaiyin Area) Co., Ltd.”

EW Environment Investment

Co., Ltd.

Linyi EW Water Co., Ltd.”

Binzbou Hongsheng New
Energy Technology Co., Ltd."

Risheng New Energy
Technology (Juxian) Co., Ltd."

Ji'nan Zhangqiu Guangda
Environment Management
Limited”

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China
PRC/
Mainland China
PRC/

Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Korea

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
42,000,000

RMB
51,350,000

RMB
100,000

RMB
106,527,680

South Korean
Won
100,000,000

Us$
30,000,000
RMB
7,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
124,000,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 95

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatment
Waste water
source

heat pump

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Investment

holding

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Solar energy
Solar energy

Investment
holding

Registered under the laws of the PRC as private companies with limited liability
Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment enterprises
Registered under the laws of the PRC as Sino-foreign cooperative joint ventures



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

1

)

3

The Company is committed to contributing 79.6474% of EB Water Nanning's registered
capital. The remaining 20.3526% registered capital is contributed by three PRC joint
venture partners. Except for one of the PRC joint venture partners, who is committed to
contributing 0.0097% of registered capital and shall not be entitled to the net profit of EB
Water Nanning, the Company and other two PRC joint venture partners share the net profit
of EB Water Nanning on the basis of their respective proportion of registered capital
contribution.

EW (Qingdao) Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint
venture partner of EB Water Qingdao, is committed to contributing 60% of EB Water
Qingdao's registered capital. The remaining 40% registered capital is contributed by a PRC
joint venture partner. EW (Qingdao) Holdings is fully entitled to the net profit of EB Water
Qingdao for the first 14 years of the joint venture period. From the 15th year of the joint
venture period onwards, the net profit of EB Water Qingdao is to be shared by EW
(Qingdao) Holdings and the PRC joint venture partner on a 98:2 basis.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession arrangements with the
Grantors. Pursuant to the service concession arrangements, the Group was granted rights to
construct, operate and maintain waste water treatment related projects in the PRC for a
period of 20 to 32 years. The Group has the obligation to maintain and restore the waste
water treatment related projects in good condition. The service fees are based on the extent
of services rendered and are subject to approvals from the relevant local government
authorities. Upon expiry of the concession periods, the waste water treatment related
projects and facilities will be transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal options. Both the Grantors and
the Group have the rights to terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach of

the terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the waste water treatment related projects are recognised as "Intangible
assets" in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

“

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession arrangements with the
Grantors. Pursuant to the service concession arrangements, the Group has to design,
construct and/or upgrade, operate and maintain waste water treatment related projects in the
PRC for a period of 10 to 32 years. The Group has the obligation to maintain the waste
water treatment related projects in good condition. The Grantors guarantee the Group will
receive minimum annual payments in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry of
the concession periods, the waste water treatment related projects and facilities will be
transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal options. The standard rights of
the Grantors to terminate the agreements include failure of the Group to construct, upgrade
or operate the waste water treatment related projects and in the event of a material breach of
the terms of the agreements. The standard rights of the Group to terminate the agreements
include failure to receive payments for waste water treatment service from the Grantors and
in the event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in constructing or upgrading the waste
water treatment related projects is recognised as "Contract assets" in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
26 April 2023.
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A RN ESTTA
E R i U
BEFFIK Wit &K
AR 18570 ¥ Q) 5%

(2021 4. B4 (2021 F: 5%)

BEHFEKART SERLANE
196 76) W Qi)

69,000 #0

(2021

76,000 #:70)

5% HEHKR

(2021 4 5%)

3%
(2021 FE: 3%

(SR P/ S
ANERTH 5257 7T
(2021 £
HFFHK
AR 4,984 78)

B R 1%
(2021 F: 1%)
22 A RME
¥ 113,000 #EJG
(2021 4.
141,000 #75)
A R ERD
103,000 370
(2021 %
127,000 #&7T)

PrERIE N G
1% (2021 £F: 1%)
LS ARNE
b 219,000 G
(2021 &
260,000 #75) 8
D RARIREYI
259,000 ¥ 7T
(2021 £
311,000 #J75)

&4 14 hn

B 5% (2021 £E:
5%) SSHARME

whn Q)

412,000 #76 (2021 £
450,000 ¥ 76)



B KK & A RA
W S5 TR R ME
BE-_Z-_F+-A=t—HILEE

13, BBy (8)

ERETETINET, A MRS 5 6 8 I B BURIA L5 (RLFRR th Ak
BAE) BBEOREEN . XA R R L — RIS RE B RIEN7
A TR E R TR AR E, UMERRE 5 3 RO BUE. B RS i e
pMEER, SRR,

T4 O IIRAN I A TN Bt Fry EL PRI AR R ARG 2 . SRR IV EL BT
. EFT A RE A S . S RIRRR BT AT S URBh ), T RAT R IR
H— AT . BRI AT BT RO B FIR A AR s A WoRatR. A
SHRE. ST, REFMET AU RIS EME RS A8, X RIARIENPE
BN DA B TR 45 SRR T A (AT I I

AR e, BRI A S TS % T BN A VI RAN A T R SSOE B, JOF

T4 O T 0 R B 5 B Y 8 A B o R YT E 3 55 78 H A sl AR R . e
FRE RS FR B B AT HAE 5 LI BAAS (0 R R S BUE S A e e
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HE SRR S AR A H
W 55 R M
BEZF__F+-A=1+HibEE

4.  HF
AER R NARA
AERAEZRESEPER T HR L ERT, REREMTEWHEEEY . AERCEHR—K
PEATHAT R, UM E E AR T ERMEE T, MREZS I T2 &R, TEE
AT R B, BEAHMTIEH O EPR BN EE=E. —RERT, &R
R e ASE [ DAAP A L 8E1E Br dH HFR S B =
(a) HRABUEF

A SR H S AR 7 B K TR A (B R A6 B I AR Bl I L A0

Tt 3 wE

F G EKIN M KA R

Tt T#Ex THxT FErx
TZE=-—F—H—H 4,887 11,346 52 16,285
HE - 4,640 4,640
W — ] pit B A\l (B 30) 94,143 - 94,143
WE - (4,138 ( 4,134)
PrIHCH (2,688 ( 9,876) (52) ( 12,616)
4 B B [ - 4,134 4,134
MRS 1,799 121 1,920
TR —F+ZA=Z+—HE
—F__%—-A—H 98,141 6,231 104,372
HE - 7,166 7,166
abE - (25,627) (555) ( 26,182)
#riBsCH ( 3,043)  (10,200) ( 13,243)
b B % Bl - 25,627 555 26,182
TSR (8283) ( 177) ( 8,460)
TR FE+-HA=1+—H 86,815 3,020 89,835
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HENKKEZEHRAH

o 25 1 3R M

BECF - FT A= —HIEE

14, H%E (&

AL RAEBAN (5

(b

(c)

@

SR $f5%

ARV BT 50 BRI T B A 4 B2 (AR B I L e T -

F—HA—HKEE
BT

S P EA IR S 180
(R

(NGRS

T+HZA=+—HKmE
2T

B3 ER 2>

S i

T+ A=Z+—RAKEE

FTHMRPHANHEEREHNT

MR ABFERA (HHE D
AR =47 IH 3
ST GEAN T1TBU A
ZEHH] D
FHa T HA R S S5

SR HIRE DS 455 T S MK HE 31(0).
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2022
T

6,402
7,166
602
(10,931)
( 232)

3,007

13,243

4,188

18,033

2021
TFHIT

11,756
4,640
456

(10,584)
134

6,402

2021
TG

456
12,616

2,835

15,907




FE ARG ERR A
W S5 HRFR B E
BEZR- 4+ H=1—HIMERE

4. HKE &
REFEHHAN

AERMRBELE T ZHA SR (M 13) , %8l o [ 5 i 9 — &b 7 vl 28
M. ZRHORBELERT LM 20194E 11 B 1 BAEMH 64E. HANSK—BRERERA
iﬁ%ﬁﬁ,#ﬁﬁ%ﬁmm%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁo$%@$¢§%%%ﬁﬁwA%%mm%
JG (2021 4E: 168,000 #ETT) .

T 20224 12 A 31 H, AERSEMATSLORTHSZERSHIINT, R AR
SO S SR TN F

2022 2021
F¥T T
—EN 507 555
—FEEHEN 1,836 734
2,343 1,289

15. EZR&EM=
FOEEN EREER  BRKRE ZBPEER BA

Fst TR T T Tl
S B e B

AR :
“EZ4E—HF—H 2,695,010 26,618 9,548 13,612 2,744,788
WE 488,271 - 1,670 - 489,941
TR E S ( 253,839) (2283) ( 897) (1,168) ( 258,187)
TZEZZF+ZH=+—H 2,929,442 24,335 10,321 12,444 2,976,542
B R AE
FE - F—H—H 423,577 26,618 4,144 9,529 463,868
FENREHE RS 173,364 - 1,258 2,609 177,231
FEHRIERE 14,230 - - 14,230
IISTAY RS ( 45014)  (2283) ( 415 ( 938) ( 48,650
FTEZ-F+ZH=+—H 566,157 24,335 4,987 11,200 606,679
e T 1
T2 -—-%+-H=+—H 2,363,285 - 5,334 1,244 2,369,863
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HEDERKSHRAE
W 55t R MHE

BEZ2 - Ft+-fA=+—HIEE

15.

FTIF - (82

FHEER EHEMER  BERE FPFXR S
TH#TT T TH#TT THITT THT

—g=—F+=A=+—H

A
FoE-_—%—H—H 2,259,081 25,795 10,235 13,191 2,308,302
HE 481,666 - 544 - 482,210
W — 1AM B AR (v 300 - 28 - 28
HE ( 123,604) - ( 123,604)
5 o - - ( 1,570) - ( 1,570)
VLR 77,867 823 311 421 79,422
FoE—_—%+-H=+—H 2,695,010 26,618 9,548 13,612 2,744,788
BT
—EB - —F—-H—H 391,170 25,795 3,990 6,428 427383
FENPEHERS 54,678 - 1,596 2,852 59,126
R ( 37,026) - ( 37,026)
iG] - - ( 1,570) - (1,570
VAR 14,755 823 128 249 15,955
Fo®E2 _—%+_H=+—H 423,577 26,618 4,144 9,529 463,868
WG T 4+ 1E
F_E2_—%+-HA=+—H 2,271,433 - 5,404 4,083 2,280,920

F 20224 12 A 31 H, RERAETFRKAEHE ZHHFLEN (BFEER-PRFTFEER. 84
B RRUKEKD HIKIE S 404 5,678,280,000 #5T (2021 4. 5,786,528,000 ¥70) CHRIMEAASE
FISRBRAT R R RAT RS RRIE R 2 I 5, i — PR T SR Mk 24, 25 K& 32,

F2022F 12 A 31 H, it AKER [FEFLEN] HEAEFERNE (2021 F: 1,317,479,000 #
70, TR B SREFEENZHFE RNBESANEY .
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b E kK S R

W 25 MR B
BE-Z- A =+—HILEE
16. [
2022 2021
RN T
SR RS B K R E 1,531,576 1,295,475
W —(alft B A (E 30D 191,633
TR ( 130,624) 44,468
PSR AR A B i T VA 1,400,952 1,531,576
WO = A 1 7 2 = B R R A O 7 SO 5 1Mk £5-& = AR I PO B R AR . O E 1S R
EENTIEIV R
B 2 AR R
MIREINRN S, BRI E/KAERE 6.
KSR IAE A I &7 B PR E M E UL E T EEZHAER 3%ZE 10% (2021 FF: 3%%E
10%) HEEKRITEHHAFERM S TE 2 LR ETNE S Rk e &, S TIERERNT
BLRTHTEIER N 11.3% (2021 4F: 11.1%) , VLA RHEHPIRERERAEKE 2.5% (2021
e 3%) FUAEN. BEERENEHREBHRSGFEENLZHEETNHE . RI\EPHE, F
2022 4 12 A 31 HHAFLLERBESR S (2021 4F: 1) .
17. BEEATNE
2022 2021
Tt T
B o B 7= HE 11,094 231
AEREE AR Z HBEMT:
AL
ok 7 5 A AL
LR AR Bl Hh A B E 5t FEL
HREANKSGEE S A i, 49 15K ab 2
HIRAH 350,845 %75 v [ P

T 2022 12 A31H, ERBREHAAFMBEARFE.



o EDERIK 5 R 2 ]

Tt 45t R BRHE
HE- - —HF+-A=+—-HIFEE
18. E4H™
2022 4F 2021 4¢ 2021 4F
12H31H 12H31H 1A 1H
By T T FHIT
g |
RSB TFEE R (a) 19,094,999 19,766,155 17,360,815
W RE ©) ( 17,886) ( 15831) ( 12,195)
19,077,113 19,750,324 17,348,620
BR3H
RS L E R (a) 1,953,883 1,949,143 1,679,084
W WA (c) ( 1,830) ( 1,561) ( 1,179)
1,952,053 1,947,582 1,677,905
Hih &L %™ (b) 58,340 47,884 3,282
2,010,393 1,990,466 1,681,187
Fe¥:il 21,087,506 21,740,790 19,029,807
B
(a) F 20224 12 A 31 H, A [RESGELESR] SEN—RELERBARN—4
42 g P 2R T o A — [ 4 e B 4 ) (i — () SC e A B3R5, 4350100 525,427,000
I5 (2021 4E: 534,155,000 #95) J& 704,322,000 #:7T (2021 4 822,617,000 #70)
F20224E 12 A 31 B, BESFLEGRFEE3E 21,048,882,000 #70 (2021 4F:
21,715,298,000 B T5) , NIEEFIZENT 4.40%ZE 7.83% (2021 F: 4.90%% 7.83%) it
B. F202412 A31H, 5HEEEBHRSISTEEBZHA RKMZHTA
10,549,068,000 ¥ 75 (2021 4E: 11,218,763,000 #70) o ARFAFFVFEEBULZHRN HAR I
AR, BRI 2SR RS B A T SRS E
MR CBHYE 200 .
(b) rE A AR AT R S RS S AP R A A% . %S AN TRABEEMNA

T RS A 23 BT R B AT R (] 3R
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i E Y KRGS HRATF
W 2% R B
BE-ZE - —#t+ - A=+—HIEE

18.  HBHHEFE (80
. (8
(c) AR

F20224F 12 A 31 H, 19,716,000 75 (2021 4F: 17,392,000 #:70) BN ELIEZH
TR RT kS . REFRESREFP IR G LR LERBUREN &R MHE 20 F#E.

EATPRRERE 2R -

2022 2021
T T

TH4] 17,392 13,374
EFARRE TR (E 8) 4,002 3,533
IR 2 ( 1,678) 485
TR 19,716 17,392

AEEHTEAME B AR BT EES YT, DOFETER TR, S2ME
TiETF EAMEIPHZ W SR AT T . B E R RIS R 1R He
BB L TFHE H B8 2 B S R 4 A U E i &3 B R KGRl DL R BTt
SHRARER. F20224 12 A 31 H, FINAZEABMENTT 0.05%Z2 0.12% (2021
F: 0.05%ZF 0.16%) » MIEABKRMAETNT 57.70% % 64.90% (2021 F: 57.65%%
64.87%) .

F 20224 12 A 31 H, XEREFKRREE 2/HFLER (BFELEATHHRTEE
BN R SORE) FIKTE S AN 5,678,280,000 G (2021 4F: 5,786,528,000 #:70) TLHEHT
TENARBRIRATRLR SORAT B SRRE S Z 1k i, 3 — DV T SRR INE 24, 25 &

32,
19. e
2022 2021
T T
JEA B R FE 85,820 70,189
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FEERKBERA A

2022
TFHET

991,870

T 8- R i

BE_R-_F+_A=+—HitEE

19. fFfr ED
ETHRERPHIANTF LM ER ST
CFEFRNIKENE

20, AR R R A B AT Bk 5

JEBPA
HoAth WSR3
W VA

PO A
st

B3
VLS
W A

JLA LRI 2 2 T 4% 4
e JBE

R4 L
Pl — [E B A 720
IRE S

It

2022
TH#TT

304,462
( 33,354)
271,208

285,046

556,154

3,808,432
( 446,835)
3,361,597

126,497
( 17,516)
108,981

165,655
9,365
122,104

3,767,702

4,323,856
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2021
Tt

946,643

2021
TG

333,489

(6,967

326,522

417,859

27,428

771,809

2,548,697

( 252,045)

2,296,652

103,817

( 13,383)

90,434

192,277
9,843

277,048
2,866,254

3,638,063



FEERKSE R AT
W 5530 R M
BE R _F+ A= —HIEEE

20, SIUOER B HAB M USRI (4E)
N — [ BCE A B BTN T . IR B R AR R IR R 4.75% (2021 4E: 4.75%) iHE.

VLSS AR Uit S P8 o L

2022 2021
FH#IT Tt
T4 252,045 97,246
O ARIRE TR (FHE 8 226,899 149,289
SR ERE TR (FHE 8) - ( 47,308)
A SRS AT IR - 47308
L R% ( 32,109) 5,510
THER 446,835 252,045
HAUMWCE IR S R T ik &2 BEn T
2022 2021
FHIT TG
TF4EH] 20,350 3,521
CHARIE T/ (E 8) 33,829 16,451
LR IAR ( 3,309) 378
FER 50,870 20,350

RO T ITEE G 30 25 90 HE0. RIURIKEK EZAR R LS E IR F= A (M 2a KA L 7= 1
HEEH AERIFAFEZELER T T .
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RS HRRA
W35 TR M
BEZF - _F+A=t—HILFE

20.

IR B F AR YRR (48)

ASE W CUNL P I 7 ot B 95 1 A U 58 0 S TR S NS IRIE i3k %, OBt pTs
FHBUKHCR A BATEE AN BUR 5 4038 & . AT ERIESET1R, BB SRS SRR HE & iaiy

REGG R K2 . T ERTHIPAARTIEEEE ., WMEEEIT:
A
Wi —FHETF HEHA
B3t —HEN WEN FHEML Jek
F¥HT Tt Tt Tt T
2022412 A 31 H:
it M 7.1% 5.7% 25.8% 62.6% 11.7%
Ik AE CFET) 898,591 2,208,766 492,460 208,615 3,808,432
WAE (FH70) 63,597 125,733 126,867~ 130,638* 446,835
2021412 A 31 H:
Wit 5HE 2.6% 4.6% 14.9% 61.2% 9.9%
meaE CFHEo) 800,331 1,173,035 379,138 196,193 2,548,697
WWE (F¥#IT) 21,120 54,386 56,496 120,043* 252,045

~ 95 R S L KR A H R 47 19,408,000 570 (2021 4E: 14,257,000 78) , HTH
RTINS B AT AR B I R IE & R4 8, W0 el R S 5 )

* ALFE LR E PR AE VR 440 111,997,000 #6575 (2021 48: 114,275,000 ¥75)
BT E B R R RAEF AT GERB R R EHE S EEH, WG e 2 SISOK Ko ik
#.

T 2022 12 A 31 H, WAAREFZ [ RIRO R B A RSEROR | A3 ROk K 3,361,597,000
BIG (2021 47 2,296,652,000 #70) , ot (a) Silk—E IEA BB A B 10— & IR AR 20T
NE Q021 11,657,000 #70) , K (b) Rdg— B2 I B A F I — A XBEA T RN
13,963,000 #& 75 (2021 F: 14,211,000 5

T2022F 12 A 31 H, ThARERZ [ HALSBCERIR | A5 281,585,000 #576 (2021 4E:
308,020,000 #E7T) MIBRFAMERIBCERIN, A DYERKSE (D) HRARESTERY &5k
WE A E SRS T A ERLHM S T R RS AR . BT 20224 12 A 31
iR E TR %4 22,105,000 35T (2021 4E: 6,967,000 370) o ZETUET 2024 4€ 12 A 31 H
ISR
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B E RS A R A FH

&R MHE
BE_ZZ-F+_HA=1+—HIL¥FE
20, IR IR B A ISR I (4R)
T 20224 12 A31 B, tALERA [ HARRWERI A ZRTiEE ] BFEHARKES dER) AR
AT R R GEER L) 2 W B RATS TR AL B 27N 26,508,000 T (2021 4: 19,381,000 ¥
JG) .
T 20229 12 A 31 H, itAERER 2 [ HADSIBCRI K 0% 4 | BFEEERN B ET Rt
K% KA R AR KIEIETHALTE KA TR BA RA & BT R SR 25 BUNT 6,394,000 37T
(2021 %E: 8,095,000 #:70) o HT 2022 4F 12 A 31 HiHREUEIR SN 2,283,000 ¥ 76 (2021
4. 2,382,000 1)
F20224 12 A 31 H, REFHFTRFRETAZRHHFEER (BRBTHAF= PR R ER,
B R RNBIKED) KT RSN 5,678,280,000 #ot (2021 4F: 5,786,528,000 #70) S 3HEH
YERAE BRI RATRNE R RAT R RS 2 5, i — P HRR T U EHRINE 24,25 &
32,
RG22 BrA B SR B vT T —4E M IR BREA R T S
21, Hih&phgr=
2022 2021
Tt Tt
PAA R ETFERAE BT RE () 186,219 222.880
PAA e T E R E L i IR % 35,498 36,122
petil 221,717 259,002
W AEENEAER & - ( 36,122)
RI33ER 43 221,717 222,880

LR EWRBENEREEIW AT B 6, BB AR B RARR R AR BRI
BRARAF N 6%BAN o ZSFEIA 7 S 2 KNI A SRNMETE AR SR, M5
THREANSHEIFFRAEAETEELFE.
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T EDEAK S EIRA ]
F 25 12 B i

BE-ZE-—4F+ A=+ —HibEE

22,

& RMEEMm
2022 2021
FHT FHETT
BERNEFRITES 2,844,990 2,281,001
ZIRHIRAT G R B CHPPRAIT 2 917 985
2,845,907 2,281,986

T 20224 12 A 31 H, CHAMEITIERIRT TRIT, MALETETRSS TR ER IR
(I4E 58 JBL ST R 4RAT AU R HH AR 1R

T2022F 12 A 31 H, HtAAEHAZ (94 BRREZENY ] BEFRTAAT LB
ﬁ(E%$ﬁﬁﬁ%WEﬁﬂ)Zﬁ%%1%2%ﬂm%ﬁ<mmfﬁ1%Jmmo%
JT) .

F2022F 12 A31 B, REAUNRFIHERIE RIS LSHH 2,845,907,000 H55 (2021
ﬁa;mmﬁmm%ﬁ)OA%ﬁﬁﬁamﬁﬁ&ﬁMﬁm,%ﬁ,w%¢ﬁwm«%m%ﬂ%
%»&«%m\%mﬁﬁm%ﬁﬂ%»,K%@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%%mﬂ%Z%ﬁ%A%m%ﬁ
R AR B2 i

RATIFEF R RAIT B, MRS RTRIE S AR TR BRI . TR TS n
Y IR B A LT 2 AT

T20225 12 31 H, AERMBATERBICAREERNR, FEik, AEFCRE 1248310
BT A IRIT ER N FE R T RARE K.
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L RK S A R A F)
W 25 1R M

BE_E-_F+-A=+—HIL*EE

23.

JSLAS B At A KM

2022 2021

R T

AT T R 2,278,842 2,307,616
AT 7K SR A T B AR AR 13,672

MATHE A BB A 7 A AR B AR i B 5,364 -

PNATF B, 128,912 125,637

LA R R IR - 10,023

BE{E R B B Ath S AR I 31,144 30,977

A RLA 2R T R B2 R 710,178 741,420

SR 3,168,112 3,215,673

F 20224 12 A 31 H, RATKZKEST 1,653,099,000 #:75 (2021 4E: 1,742,243,000 #:75) kA
M BOT. BOO X TOT %z it TARRATER . Hid T A2 AT 3R IR & ok 3 37 49 207

F20225 12 H 31 H, WARERZ [RATKER] B35 RATIEL BB A 7 R JER B AR R 1R
KK 67,617,000 #70 (2021 £E: 80,889,000 #570) , MXRTUALIRM. 4B R 5%
B AR T HEEE P AE RIS NE R R,

T20229 12 A 31 H, HAKERAZ [RATHK] GIENAT— RS 2 F RRATIKE 4,816,000
EIG (2021 4F: 12,970,000 85T) , HKEKITUATIRMT. SERIES ZBE AR TAEESR
P EE SR M5 ML .

T202249 12 310, AFERZ [HAPATZRRESH M ] BFE—HHEA T4
T H A4 IR IE S 14,229,000 370 (2021 4F: 14,102,000 #7T)

20224 12 A31H, WAKRERZ [HASAGKIER 2 | ISR — E 4 5 bR A

) i) — 44 JE P IR R 2 FLAt A RO 215,053,000 3675 (2021 48 228,468,000 ¥6T5) , HISEZK IR
NI Zh A REBAT AR 2B R TR E R EE .,
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 E M RIKSS AR A
W 55 th R MHE

BEF-_HE+ A= HIESEE

E13:1h ]

WAT ST —F i

AT TR —TC R

REfF s —A 1 (B 25
RLAH 7 — TR (B 25)

EF3A

AT T — K4
WATHTR—TC IR
MAH RS —A I (M 25)
AR SR —TEHEH (ME 25)

ALIVSE
BUEIEAE SR
— N EIRE R
B
BZFZHLE (BEEEME)
BLER

2 H

2024 4£-2039 4F
2024 52037 4E

2024 ££-2025 4F

2023 4
2023 4F
2023 4E
2023 4E

64

2022

Tt

1,954,369
4,605,701

3,015,630

9,575,700

183,105
2,236,241
154,202

3,112,887
5,686,435

15,262,135

A

2023 £-2039
2023 ££-2037 5

2023 4F
2023 £E-2024 4E

2022 4
2022 4F
2022 4F
2022 4

2022
T

5,686,435
3,767,538
3,326,368
2,481,794

15,262,135

2021

TH#T

1,952,995
5,522,513
168,679

3,405,723

11,049,910

316,454
1,299,777
69,060

1,706,737
3,392,028

14,441,938

2021
T

3,392,028
4,310,110
4,437,097

2,302,703

14,441,938



 E A S A IR A A
4 25 SR W

BE

24,

CECCFt A=t —HIEEE

B (4

F 20224 12 H 31 H, AERZETRATHRBE R UET 5 A& B RS2 S M 2 HE %
R BB MBGRIUERERE™, URAAFET B AT Z BEAER. F 20224
12 A 31 H, ZFERITITRBE N 3,154,472,000 #E55 (2021 4E: 4,308,051,000 #5¢) , HbT
20224 12 A 31 HEBIA 2,137,474,000 3570 (2021 4F: 2,269,449,000 #:95) .

T 20224 12 A 31 H, EHMIHETRRELE 9 9,718,867,000 #75 (2021 4E: 11,047,629,000 #:
J6) , HAEE A 6,841,942,000 5T (2021 4F: 6,822,290,000 ¥TC) . AL F TARMARITAY
AP, 1,232,109,000 75 (2021 4E: 996,964,000 ¥70) HAATIEGE, HbT 20224 12
H 31 HE\3h A 698,544,000 #:7T (2021 4E: 696,964,000 H:75)

T 20224 12 A 31 H, HTHRERENE 6,586,105,000 3570 (2021 48 8,368,757,000 #:7T) FifsS
EARERE T 5 R XTI . MAET SRS, FrsBRaE SN EREE, F 2022
F 12431 H, HREECEHA 5,354,348,000 #70 (2021 4E: 6,285,589,000 HET5) - AEFL
R SZE TR . BTRTRRE R IR A A 72T MR A A BERTEST

HH P AAE T R R AR BRSBTS, BRESRAERE TS E WM &S K 4 3B

%o RERE IR SR K — BV T I SR E R 37,

T 20224 12 A 31 H, AEF4RITHZK 8,979,416,000 ¥7T (2021 4E: 9,091,739,000 H:7T) Hirs
BEFR 1.72%E 5.94% (2021 £E: 1.29%F 4.90%) iH8, KERifHE% 6,282,719,000 H %

(2021 4F: 5,350,199,000 #70) % [E EERZE 1.72%% 3.99% (2021 4E: 3.20%F 3.99%) it
1%\0

T 2022412 A 31 H, KRERARITHRE 411,553,000 #T (2021 4E: 1,108,516,000 #7T) LI
JGilE; 5,002,452,000 #ot (2021 4E: 4,562,732,000 #55) UAABRHHE; 197,215,000 #:75
(2021 4 21,133,000 %75) PARRTTIHE; & 3,368,196,000 #7T (2021 4E: 3,399,358,000 H
J6) LA TIE.
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HEYERKSHRAH
o 55 4R M
BER-ZFE+ - A=+—HibEE

25, NiffER

2022 2021
T¥HTE Tt

E| N1
BE 7 X RRIE SR —A 4 - 168,679
ARMRFE— T 782,227 965,958
s RS — T 2,233,403 2,439,765
3,015,630 3,574,402

B3
BRI SS—H 154,202 69,060
ARRFE— I 881,127 1,706,737
A S — TR 1,114,360 -

SR S — I 1,117,400

3,267,089 1,775,797
5,350,199

6,282,719

T 20204F 4 H, RAFREHPEANRILAEBRITE SRS 2k A R TTHE ) #I = E

REREZHEMEDT, BMEFOIART 301270, AR EREEMBETFHE. T 2020
F8H4H, FARRITEMUANRTIHEMDYERE, B AART 101278 GURHETTF

AR 3,704,000 TTHT) » FFIZRN 3.60% & AR iR 4T B EARSTHAEI=F. FIESIH 2020 4
8 A 5 HEt &R H I gF X .

T20214E 1 H, AABRRTUARTHHMER S b HER, £8 8 ARM 104275 GuigM
FKIFL AR 3,000,000 JTCHT) , SRR 3.75% K HBR B RAT BRI =4, FIEFid

2021 4 1 HREBEERE H IbEFEE AT, T 2021 4F 8 A, AA R RITHE— LR T2 84 17
BT, SBANART 81270, FERMEH 2.40% K% it HEARN 2021 4512 8 H. FlEFEBE
AR A S —H 2T AAT BT 2021 46 12 A 8 B2IE LA R -8 /58 — B 5 1h
BHRMAS MFIR .

T222F 4, AAFRTUARTIHENSE =TSR, SWMAART 104275 Gugt
KIFX AR 3,000,000 JCHT) , FERIZEA 3.10% MM B &ATH BT NE=4E. FIESiH
2022 4F 4 HREEE B ILSETAT. T20229F 9 A, AARRITESHUN R T 8850
TS, SBEAANRT 104478, FRRN 1.72% K 4B 15 2023453 5 18 H.
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PEDERKSHIRAH
T4 55 AR

BE

25.

ZE - FE+ A=+ —HIkER

PLf R (82

AAFT 20194 11 H 28 HEOLR/KSE GRID ARAT  THIIKE ] . AARZ ARG
AT WBERPIFAESFR] C [HZHR) D TRRITR = IHFSThEABERR%EER L
WA ([ EZAT) ) RIS HiE. T 2020463 A 26 H, EXFIRHELERNE ( [HR
W) BN ATRERAT R SRR T W MIBTRUWE, B STHRES 00 R 4T
AMRIZ T ANRM 3MZTT R SHFHER AT B BRI B R 12 M WEBRRAT.

T 20204 6 J 17 HEBMART 3 1ZHIB > X EHESH BT RLT, HPART 2.85 20t ® i
P FREFHPEAERREEAERART 1,500 J5 70IR G E 72 3 BHE 2 BRIk 5 A0 o

BEIESF 2 RGBS N NIEYIK S . B SRS A 2 = A EAML T T B B A 55t
VOAN5 7K A BRI E BT 26 H 2020 4 3 A 1 FAS 9 5 4Rk s B 18] P9 195 7 A R i 2 254
FHRTE 2 F 5 %F 24 H IR B 72 % R4 T AR .

RAH R = S FRES IR R RN R R =S MBI H N EAKE, a5

() MLARGTHFIES 01, HARTT 50,000,000 76  [REHRF=RFEFS 1] );

(b) RSB SCHFIESS 02, AT 54,500,000 7T C [RAEHKEF=ZIFES 2] );

(c) MAFFIHFIES 03, AN AR 57,000,000 7 ¢ [HRAEHBEF=IFATS 3] )

(d) MR EZLHRES 04, AART 60,500,000 76 ( [BLFE=LEiFELR4] ), &

(e) AR FE LS 05, AHAET 63,000,000 7 ( [REEEFETEITFZS] )

IR T = X FFESS 2 AR & B R BARRAE TR 2 BRI [ R ALE, AT 3.38%F 3.99%2 4EF|
it ARAWLERT 202343 A26 0 ( [8 12MEKHE | ) ZiRBRER K= TH
TESF 4 RN BF= L RIES 5 ORISR, RISAE MBS BT 200 MEEA (1 EZET
0.01%) o PREHKBEF=SCHFES 4 RSB R 7= L RHIES: 5 B8 APIE — IR, 14 Uik
BEREERYKS . ZTPNZATEHNE S 2 MERE T8 26 HEES 12 /MR H
s 17 | k.

T 2022 5, KA ARG L RRES R 2 430 E 1R Se BB 7= SCRRIE S 2 A S AR
14,000,000 6 (2021 %E: ARTH 40,500,000 75) FMEEHZ A= RES 3 MASART
42,500,000 7o (2021 £F: ) .

T2017%7H 21 H, AAFBASEEHREERITUARTHEA S BB ART 25
fLm 2RSS ( [AR6E] ) SHXERIMIT LA L.
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B RKEHRAR
W 35 R

BEZ

25.

FE_EFTH=1+—HILERE

Pt fizs (42)

T201757A24H C [HXRTEM] ), RAFMRTE-PEEELFAANRT 101278 G0
FRAERIFSCA BT 5,964,000 JGRT) HIARMES, WM ERETHPRIEIPEE. $—HA
A AFFHLERIR 4.55% T B AR RK FERET HWPRZRMH LEEMAFE. RIBEAR
WFz &S, BERRTHMET=FE, AAFAEHREE - WATMRSTAHAMATH
FZENE AT THRRATONIE, SATHEZERFERT 20 T H AR it
& (WA o BHFFEARE TR, WL USSR RRSERFTAAT . %W
SIBLEAT (A R REA A R R A R BE R — WA R R R 2 AT R AN T/EH .

T 2020E 6 H 24 H, RAFRCAMERE —WAFMESNEmMAIZFE, 202047 H 24 H
220229 7H 23 HIEHIESEEAIZRH 4.55% FHE 3.28%. FHZ 20204 12 B 31 k4
B, AAFCMEZE—IAATHESEE AR 650,000,000 76, HAART 350,000,000 764
e, W4 ART 300,000,000 7T DAY,

T2018FE8H 16 H ( [BZWRITHM] ) , KAFTKITE AL EHTNART 8127
(FABRHRFF L AR 4,171,000 JTETD BIA TS, WIRAE - RRT AR RS, 8
ARG EER R OAREEFANRT 44T EEFE 4.60%1 BHESE, (i)
FE2BMART 4 L TERIFIR 4.58%iF BRMES. 2ATSTE - RETHSEEDIH
IEEIATFIE . MBARGHFZ LK, BE RXRTAVEIZ8E, AARHEMFHES
HMARFFETIAMHITR THEZEBME, AATBTERRITAYE, ZME =E10F
BET 20 N TAEH A ER KBRS (WE) . SR ARG -, L U &S
ZHIA AR ER T AAF, ﬁﬁmﬂMGﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁAﬂkﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ HAFRBE
FRZAFBEHEANT/EH.

T 20214 7 A, ARABEMEE INAT BRI —E 20214 8 H 16 HE 2023 8 A 15
H LSRR SRR 2R 4.60% HEEH 3.20%. T 20214E7 B, AAFSAGE A TEEN
mo AP AE 2021 4E 8 H 16 HE 2023 4E 8 A 15 HIEHAM B E T FIZ M 4.58%1H3 K 3.20%.

THZE 2021412 A 31 HIEE, RAFCWRE AT 65 RH—E A RT
79,100,000 7, HA AR 70,000,000 6 giie &, mH& ART 9,100,000 7T OHES. T
F 20214 12 A 31 HILEE, AAFCME S WA RREN &R =43 ART 183,050,000
76, HH AR 180,000,000 e EMHE, RIS ART 3,050,000 76O 4.

T29F1A21H ( [B=ZRKRITEE ) , ZAFBKITESHEALSETHART 71258
(HIBRAE R FF LA R 3,632,000 JCRT) MIAFRS, HIRBAE=RETHYRIIVHEE. 5
SN AR 2 3.89% 1 B R AA T T HE=IRRITHHRED A -FEFIA.
RIBEAFGIFZEZR, BEZREATAWET=Z£F, AATEPRESE=RARHELET M
HAR THELETMAE. AARBTESRETHIE, IMAB=E0FIERT 20N TERS
WEFRREERE (WF) . fFFEANE TN, THEE XUNMESE = A R RS ER
FALT . ZBIRRHATERN A AT & EE XA S = HARGRSENE L AFENL
AMTHEH. BATEMEE=HATMBLE 2022F 1 A 21 HE 2024 F 1 A 20 H -8 A =R
FIZEIN 3.89% PN 3.08%.
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HE YRR SR A A
W 55 R MHE
BE-Z -+ ZA=T—HIMEE

26, IBIERLIN

TBSERL B = R BT R Z BT

36 FER I 5% =
Wt A = B
RN R E TR
THt
T2 —-F—H—H -
W — EI B AR (FYE30) 8,122
BRI a8 BB FERL T (BHIEDD (2,107)
IR 112
T E -+ A=t—HAkZE 2 —H—H 6,127
FIBR 0 2 0 ERL I (9D (2,462)
MINATE ( 412)
T EZ2__F+_H=+—H 3,253
126 SIE A T 47 5t
FRE M
CEBRIA 55
HAERER
W =) —3BE
WEAT 3 1258
iz ZHEEZ WRERAR
ARMERE  ErTHEES RO BERR HoAt Bt
F¥It T¥on THIT T T
F-EZ—%—H—H 177,814 1,311,930 312,104 (29) 1,801,819
kR GEN) i
BHIERI (YE 9) ( 8,951) 119,322 89,166 - 199,537
AL R 7,055 43,929 11,398 (D 62,381
T2 —-%+-A=+—H
F_F__F—-H—H 175,918 1,475,181 412,668 (30) 2,063,737
g GEN) HEH
BRI (E 9 ( 11,684) 28,755 55,254 - 72,325
I TRIGE ( 19,885)  ( 127,522) ( 37,968) 3 ( 185372)
ZRICHEAZAZT—H 144,349 1,376,414 429,954 27) 1,950,690
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FE KK S HRAF
W 45 R My
BE - Z - H+—-H=1—HiEE

26. BIERIIN (82

T 20224 12 A 31 B, AEFTHEAHEZ GBS R4 203,447,000 5T (2021 48
107,188,000 #75) , HXRTHW FAIERMETE TR AT HSMARBEA, HN ARG TF—
EHENER. HTERTHRECRATR—BRNOZETHBAR, AL N IER
BAE AT RS ZE TS MBI T, SOETTR R B A oA 2 BRSO iR
B =

ARG E VBT BIE, T A R SL K 21 R R Al FIHE SR 5 B IR B R B 4N 10%
PR, ZME E 20084F 1 A 1 Btk IREHAT 20074 12 A 31 HS2AF. MhE R
LS B BE FVERIX AT A B I AT SR B B BR . AED SRR N s%®
10%. B, AEEZURT - E RSB A B4R E 2008 4E 1 B 1 Bfaf=tk > ZFRIFT4
TR BAHE AT 5.

AT 16 FL AR IR R R BN AL BT3B B

27. i
2022 2021
T TFHTT
VEE:
10,000,000,000 [ (2021 4£: 10,000,000,000 %)
FREE 1.00 EIoho @ 10,000,000 10,000,000
ERAT R 2
2,860,876,723 i (2021 4F: 2,860,876,723 fIk)
SFRTEE 1.00 4 7T 1M i 2,860,877 2,860,877
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HEYERK SR A
W 25 TR A M
BEZF__H+_HA=1—HILEE

28. fiE%
AER T AERE S FEE B E TR ETHEE T ARG P2 N EBZELET].
) G E A &

STk F AR B DI RETE T A ) T AR B FIR 58 1 (¥ A A 5] Boiig ol 55 2 I 45 R T
FEEZIC R E .

() EEfEE
RIEEHTHERBATN (hEANRILMEATE) , TEME AR ZNEEMEAE
Hik& . REAE, £ 10%MEERBERMNASERZRLEHS, HERIHESE
PUE B MR A FEMBE AR 50% 1k, FRHCRENIERS, 2 i& T H T
T BT RESE I B A R MEMEAR . S A BT R ERBRA R Z BRIk
s

(i) HBABREE
LB RS AR RS BRI R 20154F 12 B 15 HARA T 247 K945
EARR TR R ARNER, EAFRMENHEHETREZHEREBNE N
e

G(v) HAihfk

oAt il 2 B IE AR R B A %o

29. KB AT R

2022 2021
Tt TFHTC

F—H—H -

RATKEEFEATH 806,982

P A FEE R F 14,334

FIRFRERATERFHA ( 14,334)

F+=-A=+—H 806,982 -

F2022E 6 H, AARRITAESAANRT 700,000,000 TLHAKEEAT R, HIBKRITRAER
BEETEFMANRT 697,900,000 76 (FH24TF 806,982,000 5 75) . KEEE AT EAEKITHE
FIRI ZERITRIZR A 3.3%, BEE=FERITHRGEETEE.
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HEYERK S A R A
W 35 TR R MHE

BE-Z - —F+-H=1+—HIHEE

30.

M55 3

T 20214 1 B 21 H, AAFREEHMBAFT ZIEE N RKSHEEHARA TS REREEFE
PV RBEERARZE TR G R PG E& RTINSOl R BT
XA KA BA R AT ( [REFRIE] ) 65%HIMEAR . REFFEEENETS /KK HAFR
M. BETE. TETE. HKRKEFKEERNEE. BH. 28, RRGEAREERS . HE
B LR MR ERE . BAEREMAKSLE . SR TR R R IR R4
B KRS WS R —EB4r o HLIRIE I TG SEARM LB T RS AT, BRI A ANRT

666,336,000 7T (55{E%7 800,136,000 ¥76)  ARBUWT 2021 £ 3 A 1 H5E .

REFGEL S I HBIEN B E O 5l TRP7IHERE B SR AR AR B = & iz
NRME-

2021
=kl

NRME

B TH I

. TR 12 898,601
T T~ 15 28
5 AL Bt 7= 14 94,143
VAT e 3R % At 2 1Tk 379,585
We RIS ENY 5,520
e 9,217
36 RN T 7 26 8,122
W f A5 (459,057)
5 SR AN AE 5 W B BT ) 7 v i S 936,159
JEFE A 21 (327,656)
608,503

W R P A 2 R 2k 16 191,633
WE T AEHE 800,136

TRIEH, ROBO R & HAl S BGR I A S 8N 379,585,000 H57G . RZUSUUE R K Hoth W Y 3k 15
B EA 546,296,000 #76, HA 166,711,000 ¥ 7 TRHHTIEIR [

SRHER R AR 28 A 0 L 7 R R 0% (.2 /A SO B0 B R
R

RERF G ZINAL B HEZ R G RAN 4,453,000 6. HRALSEACD TEE 2021 4 12 A 31
HIEHE PSRRI, it [ITBRREMBEESRH] .
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30.

31.

KIKFEERAT]
RMHE
FoOEFZAZT—HIEEE

WEEIH (8
A RBEREEIRTE 2 e i R

2021
FHT

&R (800,136)
WO IR & R ILE S 5,520
AR B ESNINEREZ NS LIS LSNP H iR (794,616)
TEALETEIRE TR EZ W 5 A (4,453)
(799,069)

BrE RN LRI AR BT BL .

HWEOWEE, #E 2021 4 12 H 31 HILERE, REFVENAERTRIKS 192,521,000 75, I
FEEE BRI R TR 41,624,000 7T

fEWIETF 2021 £ 1 B 1 BT, REREE 2021 4F 12 A 31 HIEEE S WB B BRI
#25 6,959,929,000 3570 % 1,297,162,000 #ETG. 1EJEEIZE LM, &8 R ERMZ KT
2021 5E 1 H 1 HRAE, ZIWATE R R A T 008 B BB RE 4 2 A Se i B T 4R M FH

GENeRERINE
(@ EXFEHeRS

6 BE 20224 12 A 31 HILEE, ALEMRINA TS, DHIEE &5
R SRR S 2R 121,613,000 37T (2021 4E: 118,188,000 ¥75) , FFiFALE
2022 4F 12 A 31 BZGAMERILEK [ ST & HADRATZIR |, W AE R
HELME R BT .

(i)  BE20224 12 A 31 HILEE, AEBFMR TS KSR ATEEE AN
537K 13,672,000 76 (2021 ££: F5) , ICHEIE 20224 12 A 31 HZ 548 %
WIARE [ RATIR R R HAMR AT R, S AERFTHSREE.

(i) BE 2021412 A 31 HILEE, —dELBHBA TN —2 SRR R @6

FF 2019 FEHIRKIBE P % JE 2 R MR A FER 5,059,000 #570, AR I
WeRELW.
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HFEYEKAKEHRAT
Tt 35 H R B
BE - HF+-A=+—HIEE

31, ZedlemERINE (4
(b) RABRIE BN AR SRR E)

REAf R4 Bt
R EPAGE]S
WATIER  RAIBIR RIRR IR AR E
T#xT  THT TH#TT THIT

Fmg®-—-F—H—H 7,003,805 4,074,328 85,745 17,025
RN EREE M) 1,954,886 1,120,423 (380,488) (43,956)
it %5 %% - - 435,302 -
) bt B A F AR R R R E TR AL B - - - 26,582
L 5ARE) 133,048 155,448 ( 14,922) 349
R+ ZA=+—H

AZZ__%—A—H 9,091,739 5,350,199 125,637 -
MBS RETENED) 267,952 1,574,448 (503,664) (17,573)
% % - - 544,013 -
7 B A B B IR R E IR AR S - - - 22,219
AR Z) ( 380,275) ( 641,928)  ( 37,074) 718
TZE__#HE+ZHA=Z1T—H 8,979,416 6,282,719 128,912 5,364

(c) LTI LA

GEUNSRERNH MBI G R LT

2022 2021

FH#IT F#IT
ELEWmHH 4,188 2,835
TERL B IS 10,931 10,584

32. P HH
AL B3 7= L RRIES R AT R R T & F 39 2 A B 67 2 vEAs 8 T I S 4R i 24 K 25,

F 20224 12 A 31 H, SR> EHBA TR SWHEEEN 6,281,733,000 #7T (2021
. 8,509,838,000 HETT) .
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33.

34.

HRKFEIRAT
R
CELCET AT HIREE

Z%ic)
AIERH T I S5 4R R AR B AN T «

(a)  BRALHEIESLHRIGABLT

SITAERIRE

2022

RCT

2,017,857

2021
FHIT

1,698,521

(b) T 20224 12 A31H, AER—FIE AT EERZ BA K 23,329,000 #T

(2021 #F: 25,519,000 #:70)

KKTTR 5

BRAE HAMI S B LG REERS, FEA, RERARET FHERLBEHS:

@  AEEASAEE AT A R AR BB R KA TSR 55 5 -

Wi H a8 o5 W ik
25 it
BIEMR S A

(b) AEHASEEBMRBEARRET FIIXRBEFLS:

W HZE RS
W 25 e 2t

() FERBSEEHAREAFTRET FIKEEFK5:

5K IZ B RS TF X

75

2022
T

91,401
15,161
182,205

2021
THIT

96,523
17,123
70,711




HEE KRS FIRAH
W 55 4R R B
BEZE - ZF+ A=+ —HIEE

34, KEBEFRL G (4)

() ARBSARLEFRRMBEAFRET FHIRBFRLS:

2022 2021

P22 Fi¥BTT T
&Y @) - 18
ARE RS (ii) 1,722 -
TREE % (iii) 3,038 2,695
fe R AR I 2% A (iv) 17,779 17,648

PR -
() SRR FR KR A 7 B AR A THEXT e B 4k L

(i)  FAIRRE R MR A R ST IR AT K S B A TR R AR5 2 R TR AR S AR 8
W5

(i) FUAEREE R MR A 5 ST B LRI 3 T3 ST i 4 2R«
(v) AL R R MR A B SO B R ORI 5% F 5483005 Hs 2k e«
()  SHEPNIAES MG

ALRTE i E B RS RIS BB A a4 20 B e m i &
Hiddk (SRR [HMER ] ) HESHMMHSFREREIE. F20224E 12 A31 H
LR, AEFASHMEA M2 [T SAE ERRTF) SKREEES. 417
FREFRBRARENTF L. AATEEANSZEHMEL L2 15T B A%
B HEW S E R b 2 s, i HLR A A 5 ] e oAt [ A A b 2 340 ol o B S0 42 ) 4
B, HEHFASWREFFEIERE RSB L0 . AERTRF M ERE S EN
B, HiZEBORIFEEAEN B &RENT, BN PR RENEMES M E., 2%
NEBERRRZARG, AATEENNGZEL GEERBITHRBEZ EREEHR
5

(H  FRHACINTEEEEARZIRMIT:

2022 2021
¥t T
EHHfE . e LS R RAER 23,027 25,892
FEMLE T 2,271 1,969
25,298 27,861
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6 RIK A IR A E
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34,

35.

RKTTZ 5 (8

(& AHEHASFERMBAFTNIIATRGELEHNESY. T20229F 12 A 31 H, A&d5%
FE5FRRMBE AR Z M E & HH RHAE AU 2450 2,572,000 # 76 (2021 4E:
3,153,000 ¥70) , HPNATF RHEAE 2 M 18R 2,545,000 35 (2021 4E:
3,169,000 #TT) .

EMTERARME LA RIMERER

BHETPEREAIEENY . RKK. HASBGRIT. RATIER . HARATEIR, FLE
ot B ASTRRIBI ARy 2 A B S HIKTEE AR, F BT %S TR TEm B,

RERZ M S EHA L HEE U T AARNEHBZ B LR . TE#MUE Y, K%
RIS TAZNER), IFEEHETRREZ ¥ BN 41 7 55 8 b
BBt W RSRERIOT A ER T R &R, UMEE R 5445 .

FRB T RAB LA RMEUE TR T EER S (TERiaskEa i) Y3 s T2k
GEBANK. TITTEREETIHEFAETHA RNE:

JSEAT R FA SIS FARRAT R IR . B 1158 B A SR 0 B SAER 4y 2 A S8 Ty B LA 24l
Fk. ERAREFAEH 2 TRAZIUTERFZ, WITARREREY FRHE. T
20224E 12 A 31 H, BMERTS, AERESZ REL R IEE N EY.

U2 ET AR 2 ERHR B 2 A RN E TR HER B A R R B, B R
55 AR EHE .

BL2 Se i E T A 2 2 A b AT BB 3 A S B AR B O BRI SR BB R

BUR AT 2022 4F 12 A 31 AXT &R T EAME 2 BRI M SR M EIE R 2 B RBURE 4
#r:

HAATTHR AVIRAKERTE TN
M EHTT e N ve ¥ HyE U

PAA RAMETEA OB & P E 2.80% PR LA CFRD
W dE b B (2021 4. 1% (2021 £E: 1%)
AL BT 2.80%) B FEHARME

k2> 110,000 # 7T
(2021 £

112,000 #75)
R8I0 111,000 #T
(2021 4

113,000 #75)
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BEZEF-HF T A=+ HIEEE

35, ERMTAMARMERARNMEESR (8D

ARMEER

TRIIAEB S TANA RMETEZEE:

B RINET R R

F2022%F 12 H31H

B e BT A SRR
&[S ek 4

BLA SEHE T AR 2
JE LT AR B

F2021 12 H31H

PAR St B T A4 28 4
e LR

PAL Se i 8 v A 45 28 19
Je LT AR R

2 Setf - BOR AT LR HE

FIEERMg ERTUE EXATH
Rt WARE S ABdE

FE - E=%H E=Z50 B
T T TG TG
186,219 186,219
; - 35,498 35,498
186,219 35498 221,717
2 S BT ER A UL T
FREERMY ERTRE EANTH
Mk WMASE  SRAREE
GE—4%) GEZ% (EZH Bt
T THT T THET
- 222,880 - 222,880
- - 36,122 36,122
222,880 36,122 259,002
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35.  SMTANARNMERARNERS (8
BEFARMETETERNRZSN T

2022 2021
T TFHTT

PAA se B v AN 45 238 O FE b T IR A 7
T—H—H 36,122 34,051
ARMEZZ W (FHE 6) 2,597 968
T I ( 3,221) 1,103
T+=ZHA=+—H 35,498 36,122

AARMT 2022 £ K 2021 4F 12 [ 31 HIFETATATIEA MR ISR FUE.

BE 20224 12 A 31 HIREE, B—FME - RARMETEZ AT MER, EF4m%
P RERAE, BRI TAEMEANSREY Q021 4F: £) .
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1 EERIKFH R A F
W 553 R BT
BE-Z_ A= HIRFE

36. RIS RIER T H
FIEWA, S0 TRIKEMHMENT:

2022 4F
o
HPEB A A nihE
HEK AR
GRVEFE SR f=¥-0]
TG THIt TF¥IT
TH N JRE e 2K R A 7 ST R T PR 4 i % 7 3,751,051 - 3,751,051
HAth 4 mherr= - 221,717 221,717
W& KIS 2,845,907 - 2,845,907
6,596,958 221,717 6,818,675
o ARt
PR A TR
SRR
FHI
TN AT I 33 B A 84+ K I ) < 67 £ 2,909,074
&% 15,262,135

18,171,209
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FEE KK SR A A
i 55 TR R BHE

BE—

36.

=il A= EIREE

WS HEMmTE (8

FREPR, FEINEMTANKEEOT: D

2021 4F

S

TN SR R B JE A R AR R ) ezl % 7
Hopty g BB ™
P& K BEFH)

TN BLA T K B A S A R L ¥ ez 7 £t
(W

81

BFERA e RO
WK TR

SR SRLE R
THIT T T-HIG
2,723,451 - 2,723,451
259,002 259,002

2,281,986 - 2,281,986
5,005,437 259,002 5,264,439

P AT R
SRS

THIT

3,019,103
14,441,938

17,461,041
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BE-R- A= HIEEE

37.

W55 ey FL A B BUR

AR 2 FELR T AORER LIS, ESMTREZ FEBNET NARHZILSEER
s, AEFEHE LSRR KGR, A3 RBORR S A RIBGR I B R o & Hoih
WA, ThE R B FL ST

AEER ST B EZ TERB BRI TR, FERRE LR RENE. HER
R B S R TR SR 2 B, A RBURABE T T30 AREERTAETAZ 2 BUR
BT W55 IRRMHE 2.5,

FIEX

AL AR R EEREFERAZRERINEEN Y. EREIERAFRSR, "FEHFE
R FE R F 2 A S A AR 4 B AR SEI S M BRI B RS R A R EFI RN . AEEHFT
AR SR A TR RIZ K. AR R R E R RS, T T30,

i AR

TREBHVAER T H MG PR ZAEGTHH (WISl 6
fl it B&RBE=) ZFIRMIL.

TR R B S AR B

2022 2021
SEFRF R SERRFIZR
% FHTT % FHIT

SERES, (FE) 135
(W 1.72-3.99 6,282,719  3.20-3.99 5,350,199
W B IEBRE A E) I 475 ( 9,365) 475 ( 9,843)

6,273,354 5,340,356
EIR R (FH) BE:
R 1.72 -5.94 8,979,416 1.29-490 9,091,739
B WEAREENY 0.00-1.85 ( 2,845907) 0.01-2.03 ( 2,281,986)

6,133,509 6,809,753

SEESARE Y 12,406,863 12,150,109
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HE RS AR AR

W &5 R 2 BHE
BE-_FE

F+_A=+—HIEFE

37.  WEREERHRKAEGE (8D

FIFELME (B

(i)

BURME Y

F 20224 12 B 31 H, EFiEEMTEEFATHERT, MRAEEH/TE 1%,
G SR H R RLT BRI,/ B4 124,069,000 #76 (2021 4F: 121,501,000
I .

T RBURE 43474 A ] B R B A R T B AR I SE T AR . U T (R R B
HFMERRCERE, FOCAT R EAERFTRAIFTIRENREAREDE G2
M ERIRE R SR TR . X B A< s WOR TR 7S AR AR A2 TR AT
7oA TR A T SR SR R, EL e A B BT A IR Bl 28 F S R T R SR AR T 7 A
B R E T BB . B 2R HTH 2021 BT IR Rl HEEAT o

SNCK

@)

TAZ TR

AEFAF ST IR 2 DRSS T LS Z IR IHEZESE. RELREFM
Wy RIS B AT TR TG T e B 7 R . ST MUK 3 B0 AR, R
TG~ Frindgon K EK .

T RV A A T B30 45 1R A S SR A A T R 5% T LA B 7 T S A B8 Bt

TR TR . IEFIE R, RREFETIIR, JHEREIHRNIRIICRSR
B EH S E LSS AR 5 ORI A B 2.5 8] T T AR A A B F MR
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HE R KRS H RA T
7t 55 H 3R
BE-E-—F+ - A=+—HILEE

37, WERREHEBRRBE (8

SR (BE)
()  FARZZEMRE (8

e KW EHFN

(CE

R, (49D S A BRI
LA K K At A+ R 5

e RAEHFNY

(R

R,/ () SEEA B KT
JOZ A K R S At AT 3K T3

TR b TR
(PABS IR

F 20224 12 A 31 H
ANRM #Fomyoo Wt EyIn ¥XIT
T  THET FHTT Tt THT
62,736 10,098 248,533 53,997 -
- - (2,172,925) (411,553)(197,215)
(694,383) (  55) 3,312,305 23 34,832
( 4,833) (2119 ( 5738 ( 134)( 15D
(636,480) 7,924 1,382,175  (357,667) (162,534)

TR Z AT

(PAHETCHIIR)

F2021 % 12 A 31 H
ANEH #Frmsoo Wt E =[N Rk G
T TG Tt T T#Hx
9,545 5,131 11,233 121,810 -
- - (2,702,395) (1,108,516) (21,133)
(12,834)  ( 54) 2,842,691 25,496
( 5895 (3,648) ( 5611) ( 6,762) ( 4)
( 9,184) 1,429 145,918 ( 993,468) 4,359
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W4 55 AR
e

T+ A=+—HBIH4EE

37, WMEREEEHFRRBUR (8)

SRLAEE (B8R

(i)

BURE ST

TRBIVRE T Z ARG R A LR E ERRRIRINOCET % E HR), marEH
ARG E R R AL, AEFNRBAAR KRNI, Slms, Bk
YT 238 TERO ERAAIT FR AN £ (R 36 70 S LAt B 7B U5 3 AT AR B T 32 BV KRR . B
Tt EETHEY, SUSTTIHHER TR RGH R SMNOIC RS I A ER.

F12H31H

2022 4E 2021 %
MR AT BTG
CEYH #BHLEF/ LELEHS BF LTt
CFFED (TR CFE) CFRE
% T % Tt
AET 10 ( 63,648) 10 ( 918)
(10) 63,648 (10) 918
FrhnyEoo 10 792 10 143
(10) (  792) (10) ( 143)
It 10 138,218 10 14,592
(10) (138,218) (10) (14,592)
£ 10 ( 14,564) 10 44,388
(10) 14,564 (10) (44,388)
Bk 7T 10 ( 16,253) 10 436
(10) 16,253 (10) ( 436)

3 R HIH TS5 R AR B Sk % B IO TS TV BN B0 B RIS IR
T PRI 22 3B s TG BR85S A B2 L

HUBRMEA T BB AMNOIC R A O T BH B SIS WIARARRA A KAEARR X
SZHNCRAKM ST R, A48 USER N SR M Th a8 5 M LASH N B8 Mt E R SR P 2
) 18] BEAT K0T B RO o 2% 20 B ot S L 2 1 5 4R R e O A SR A 2.5 3 1 B
PR RE. 2T 2021 RS HTIE R —EAHERAT
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37.

WF 45 R B H AR R (80

1G LT 57
HE R BEE WS VR, JRR IR T AR YR . BRI R R B E A 30
HZ 90 H AR,

AEEF 7 RISk ek E KRBT B 2358 IR 2 IR, A RERIUE WL, thoh,
AEFTE S REE—B3 ( [BT] ) . BOT. TOT &#F BOO iz 5RFFFLE DM
KEELIE,

FHRERIAR, [RGB N ICRIR ) B [AZ%R] N 25,411,362,000 7T (2021 4
25,378,853,000 ¥ 70) , FHrRIUCE R FK A 4,042,740,000 #ETT (2021 £F: 4,629,965,000
WD), B RCAAE T TR P RIS AT 8,014,382,000 MBIT (2021 4F: 8,843,599,000 #
7). HF BT. BOT. TOT K& BOO ZHEHIAE 5 5 Jorh B 5 BURMLSE, AREBAJ9E TR
BAE. AEFI TR TS KA AHEIR .

S R K E N ERAET S, BREETRRGRRREE (B TAXMNE
PRI A AT H . S oA R o 0 R 7 O T 40y 2 S
AR SRR R

B S SRR A TR ORISR B AR — AR AR, SR B RS FRE.
S % 72715 PR R ) TE SR A0 4 DA TR B -

. 7% A B 0 55 PR 5
. BRAER, iR
. 1545 NRA AT ek 45 ™= Bt A7 Al 55 B

B RLBOK EK Be A AR PR AR S SRR, A RS ARSI g BIES, AR
20 K HABRE PSR R R . AR B 3R SR 9 5 VT WA R A6 7 it
BUE RS HRIEHIRE, BB SIREHEN S 9 5 R vEst i RLKFCR A7 SR )
THEE. TER TR EERTEEES.
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37.

Fo oAt B

W 55 R HE RS BOBR (B0

1EIEME (58

AAEE OV T BUE US4 T A A T AN M E R M2 s R TRNERART
FIRHAE R 7 TR RN . A2 B AR RGO A vt T TR S — BB, 58 W BURES
=HE:

HBrE 4 VRH A AR TR, AR FIARYE 12 A A BTEIE BT B AR &

BB 4 Ay RS ER T P 7 DASR SR A SR R L7 AR L A A i A ) T
(EWFE L &

=R HoA SIS TR A S A . AR AR T E TRk
R T A AT AN S B R 2 ot S A Sk R T T W S A L B A VR A
ARG . AHER T 55— M Bt LA SBCR AT A SRR SR SR DT . EEERET
2022 4 2021 4 12 A 31 AR AL M E At SISO AR U T R B BEBUR -

F 202 4 12 H 31 H, FAREENESNYIIRTRERETERE BEH RIS .

A R A 4 A S T (5 58 KR R . A AR [ 25 ] K TR
S R ECAR TSRO | T T R SRR 3t — 2 S B 20 A B T I S5 AR 18 2 20,

s B B 9 ST 32 ST AT S SIS B AR, AR LS AR IR I B R B HURK BARL

RFAA TR AR AMBIR 2 M UE 0 R BB SR AT W0, TR
SR e A 0L e B B BRI AR (B ST, DASLX LB K R )
PR
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FE YRS HRAT
W 55 th R M

B

37.

CE -+ HA=Z+—HIEFEE

W 55 MRS B B AR BUER (48D

TSIHESSE (8-

TREFIAERTHRE AR IFTE T RS ARNRRSLWIREL, THETELRTAI
SHE (BEEEGAR RN (WEFE) MEREARBTFRTRAONE) KALRTE
AR R HHAFIH:

TEARLAT R B At
JSEA R IR < R A 5%

ikl

(e

TR R B Heft

S A K TP < R 97 51
T B 451
(e

2022
BLRITU —HFUE WEFEUL
AERE —FN HT (ESR
NI B BIEER BER RN RFULE
FHIT TH#ou  T#om T THL T
2,909,074 2,909,074 2,909,074 - - -
3,007 3,580 2,733 382 65 400
15,262,135 16,706,762 5,970,717 4,080,570 3,756,098 2,899,377
18,174,216 19,619,416 8,882,524 4,080,952 3,756,163 2,899,777
2021
FLRITU —FEUE WFEUE
HeRg —%W EF BT
WKTET OB B BRER O BIERN AER RFENDE
THTT T TH#x  THx  THExT T#rx
3,019,103 3,019,103 3,019,103 - - -
6,402 6,790 5,383 874 72 461
14,441,938 16,075,274 3,774,419 4,715,394 4,882,834 2,702,627
17,467,443 19,101,167 6,798,905 4,716,268 4,882,906 2,703,088
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FEYERAKFEIR A

W 55 TR MHE

BE_E-_H#+-_HA=t+—-HibEE

37.  WMEREBEEREBUR (5

TEYPER ST (B2
%*

EOAFEIK T NE 2 54 154,202,000 37T (2021 4E: 237,739,000 #50) KE (2021
B 2,672,695,000 HIG) HIRNATBEF= L FHESR KA TGS, BE TR LRHESRR
AEMEFE R T AEFANIN . S ERBERTE, ARMATEZ LSRN EZ4%
LR E LA 155,115,000 #oo (2021 4E: 246,086,000 #70) #HUA T HFRES]: T
20224 12 A 31 B, 155,115,000 #o# 438 [ —HERBRIEER | #E (2021 4F:
76,409,000 #ETTHE 73RN [ —FNBFER | 6, K 169,677,000 Bohinn [—4F
PLEETFFHEN] 8 « T 20214 12 A 31 B, &R AT E5HE 4K IE
WE S 2,737,331,000 i LR AREF: 1,756,275,000 M T N [ —H N ol
Bk | L, K& 981,056,000 o kN [ —FELU LEFHEN] EE) .

BRI T AR H2IE, YRR B X FESH 2 43 T 2T & B F A £ 7
PITEDLER SN . RIEH = CRRESHRZ 45 T 2022 4F 12 A 31 HEIERE& K N: T 2023
FEBVHIEIE 70,907,000 76, KT 2024 FF 2025 FEIHALIE 89,816,000 5T (2021
F T 2022 FRHAZIE 76,409,000 #o0, F 2023 FERIEEE 77,563,000 %0, KT
2024 FEZ 2025 FF T 98,249,000 #ETT) .

AFMRBR T AHRBEAE 8, HEARE A TSR 5K T B AT & B F A5 F H 5 il
bho WRIBAFMRIFEZ 5K, T 20214 12 A 31 BHREREZAN: T 2022 £ 3 HALLE
934,131,000 370, T 2023 SERIHARZIE 1,014,522,000 BT, KT 2024 4EFE 2026 2B
12£3E 855,610,000 HETT .
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37.

—R oo ZAZTT—HIEEE

W45 R B E AR BR. (B0)

HXEH
AGFTE S WA AN (0 EE B R REAERA SR E RERBRIER ARSI, PR
FHB AR KA

FLS BABUR R A, AEFS B BIRMNEH. RTHBRASREHIERT. A%
7 S50 S 7E 7 B R AR TR 2 AR 38 I R M SALATBOR T AT B aRAS S m R AR IR R P
7 AR R I E S . T 202246 % 2021 48 12 A 31 HAbH], #AEHBORIFTRS.

L AR 25 T AU A 2 L R IS P AR I YL o {450 U A B8 B S 25 55 TR AL 3
BBGE . BEPERASAE (AERASEMSREEIR, POEEEAR. RABM
RABERFARD WS RRESNYIHE . PR RFaRRA . %, ASERATA KA
A 2 o

2022 2021

FHTT T
I A5t I s % LAt B2 A 2K T 3,168,112 3,215,673
LR 15,262,135 14,441,938
B & K IMEL N ( 2,845,907) ( 2,281,986)
B 55 VR 15,584,340 15,375,625
B B Em 13,000,878 13,163,232
R 5 A AL 2 L R 120% 117%

KA SRR MV 24 BT 2 SRATRLA U & R AR T 55 bl 2 R4, AREIER
A1 SN2 B8 AR T PR o
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38.

CH)EE

(a)

(b)

(©)

F20234E2 H 20 H, AAFREAHCS ke — 4 ] T O AR A PR 7] R 1l AR
e FAFTT AR EHERSEET R GRS, L BOT A& 2 HE L1 7R 48 WA
WERE=TGRAHET REASW TGRSR AGERE ([BA] D R
o AR 668,000,000 7G. HHBFHEBRITH Yo K AL BEHIAE Y 60,000 ST KIS KR
I R AR 30 5.

F20234E3 H9H, AAFTBEMILTH o S 52 R R AT S5 T B 7R VA0 A S S B
% HASAANRT 10427, RITEMNEN 2.60% K R A 180 K.

F 202353 H, Zii’AﬁJ%’%?%'c‘:Pia‘éAEé;jE%D%Eﬁl‘lﬂﬁii%?c%ﬁw/—z?iﬁtuk%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂEP
IR M S R AR, MBI AR 5012, RN B R B AR
. T 20034 4 B 17 H, A/AF e HT P E P 5 AT 2023 EEE-HIARTT
HriohER, HASAART 1012, RATFEREN 3.20% K 3R B R AT H I T3
ke
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AT 25 IROLR

LT AT WA AL B SRR Z TR -

| ki
B I 2 A A 2

HBh B
FoA RIS IR
Fft R B

W& RREEND
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2022
T

10,618,932

9,611,167
186,219

98,085

9,895,471

145,880

4,634,455
4,780,335
5,115,136

15,734,068

4,772,482

10,961,586

2,860,877

7,293,727

10,154,604

806,982

10,961,586

2021
T

11,505,621

8,483,239
222,880

134,962

8,841,081

147,539

2,897,360
3,044,899
5,796,182

17,301,803

6,047,143

11,254,660

2,860,877

8,393,783

11,254,660

11,254,660
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40.  FEKBEARBE
AAF B ARERWOT

FEM AR T/ BRAT
BicHh s & X A/ AN F) L S
2R E VLA FEM R A W as E FEWVSE
HiE A

Bl TKGSBEFRAA" HE, ART - 100 157K AL
CB3E@E)) i EAH 10,000,000

JER KN ERERAT HE, AT - 100 A =S
(RIAR TIEEERKSS [ P #e 1,200,000,000

KREHFRAA ] D °

bR BRI IERI AR A" HE, ART - 100 MR

Fh E A HE 9,582,816 KRG B

ARG

S EFAER AT RBHIREHD 10,000 - 100 EvdAgialivd
EIT

Fh [E Y AK %5 B BRFANF R Fhng 5,000,000 100 - HEEk.

NG| Frmy oo AR K

W& RN

EHERS

HENEIKSREERAT HRARRESY 2 3£TT 100 - KR

R YRR S A TR A 5] FH 100 ¥ 0 - 100 BRHEER

KIERRX FEKKESE R HE, AR T - 100 V5K AL ER
AFE" (HHE@)) rhERH# 10,000,000

KIE K EHI K 557 R HE, AR T - 100 157K AL
AT (HHEQG)LMHTEE)D FERH 10,000,000

FENKGEFKEF IR hE, AR . 100 157K Ab 3
AR (MHEG)KFHE@)) ERHL 10,000,000

KIEMH2)JEX K KFER R, AR T - 100 157K AL
NFE (HEG) hEAH 66,500,000
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